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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
31 31 31 31 31
IFRS

83,516 131,888 154,393 121,832 126,984
11,336 17,902 20,957 16,537 17,237
18,505 18,785 14,896 25,828 40,146
2,512 2,550 2,022 3,506 5,449
(9,463) 36,935 71,549 (39,948) (98,917)
(1,285) 5,014 9,712 (5,423) (13,427)
908 908 908 908 908
123 123 123 123 123
2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
146,006 182,507 254,030 214,133 115,237
19,819 24,774 34,482 29,066 15,642
9,322,796 | 12,116,283 | 15,344,344 | 16,897,654 | 18,897,355
1,265,476 | 1,644,664 | 2,082,841 | 2,293,688 | 2,565,127
73,003 91,254 127,015 107,067 57,619
9,909,427 | 12,386,818 | 17,241,016 | 14,533,275 | 7,821,203
(4,732) 18,468 35,775 (19,974) (49,459)
(642,322)| 2,506,846 | 4,856,099 | (2,711,271)| (6,713,565)
1.566 1.506 1.656 1.267 0.610
(6.481) 20.238 28.166 (18.656) (85.838)
(1,979,679) (2.,188,022)[ (2,528,041)| (1,731,595)| (1,771,216)
(268,722)|  (297,002)|  (343,156)|  (235,047)|  (240,425)
49 160 193 53 112
7 22 26 7 15
2,103,808 | 2,288,623 | 3,017,513 | 1,918,176 | 1,794,466
285,571 310,658 409,597 260,373 243,581
126,633 242,260 744,607 903,636 952,524
17,189 32,884 101,073 122,660 129,296
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23

3,714

2022 31 350

120 300
3.5 555
2022 29
©)
2021 11 50 364
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153 1,370 1,921 402

3,358 403 - -

EMTN 514 2,359 7,597 865
134 - - -

4,159 4,132 9,518 1,267
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(The Bank of New York Mellon, acting through its London branch)
E14 5AL
(One Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5AL, United Kingdom)
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2010
TFSEAR
2010
TKG
2013 TFSEAR
2013 TKG
L 1967 2015 TFSEAR
2015 10 TKG
2017
TBP
2017 TBP
2021 (
)
L
2022 TFSEAR
1999
2010
TFS
2014
1976 12 15
L 2018 TFS
2021 (
) T™F
2021 TMF L
1984
1998
2013
TFS
2014
1961 12 11
(S/R )
2019 TFC
2019 TFS
2019 (
)
S/R
2020 TFC
1990
2000
2004
2007 11
TFS
2011
1967 2014 TFS
(S/R )
2017
2021 TFS
2021 TFS
2021
2021 (
)
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EY 2017
T™MF EY
EY
EY 267,000 328,000
()
@
25,247,640 21,854,140 37,735,720 17,646,200
25,247,640 21,854,140 37,735,720 17,646,200
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©
©)
Q)
)
258,000
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31
2021 2022
5 117,139 15,900 121,718 16,522
6 167 23 163 22
7 602 82
7 4,526 614 4,501 611
4 121,832 16,537 126,984 17,237
8 (78,913)|  (10,712)[  (66,557) (9,034)
9 (17,091)]  (2,320))  (20,281) (2,753)
(96,004)| (13,032)[  (86,838)]  (11,787)
25,828 3,506 40,146 5,449
10 (6,449) (875) (8,614) (1,169)
11 (64,424)|  (8,745)| (159,212)]  (21,611)
14 156 21 (1,113) (151)
(44,889)|  (6,093) (128,793)]  (17,482)
13 4,941 671 29,876 4,055
(39,948)  (5.423)|  (98,917)  (13,427)
28 51 7 21 3
(39,897)|  (5.416)|  (98,896)  (13,424)
(39,897)|  (5.416)|  (98,896)  (13,424)
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14 | 6,200,328 841,633 | 6,948,689 943,215
20 108,570 14,737 108,859 14,777
24 7.471 1,014 9,154 1,243
16 64,657 8,777 156,346 21,222
22 903,636 122,660 952,524 129,296
7,284,662 988,820 | 8,175,572 | 1,109,752
14 | 9,388,782 | 1,274,433 | 10,403,770 | 1,412,208
16 222,774 30,239 288,735 39,193
15 1,248 169 1,270 172
17 19 3 15 2
18 169 23 166 23
19 27,827 3,777
9.612,992 | 1,304,868 | 10,721,783 | 1,455,375
23 | 8,135,130 | 1,104,263 | 8,027,056 | 1,089,593
16 97,103 13,181 148,651 20,178
24 7.471 1,014 9,154 1,243
21 2,536 344 9,124 1,238
25 124,423 16,889 146,892 19,939
3 0
8,366,663 | 1,135,691 | 8,340,880 | 1,132,191
(1,082,000)  (146,871)  (165,308)]  (22,439)
23 | 8,116,130 | 1,101,683 | 10,163,405 | 1,379,581
16 186,967 25.379 277,833 37,713

19 13,761 1,868
8,316,858 | 1,128,930 | 10,441,238 | 1,417,294
214,133 29.066 115,237 15,642
27 908 123 908 123
212,732 28,876 113,815 15,449
FVoCl 28 493 67 514 70
214,133 29,066 115,237 15,642
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(©)
2020 908 123 | 252,680 | 34,299 442 60 | 254,030 | 34,482
28 51 7 51 7
(39,948) (5,423) (39,948)| (5,423)
(39,948)| (5,423) 51 7| (39,897)| (5,416)
2021 31 908 123 | 212,732 | 28,876 493 67 | 214,133 | 29,066
28 21 3 21 3
(98,917)| (13,427) (98,917)| (13,427)
(98,917)| (13,427) 21 3| (98,896)| (13,424)
2022 31 908 123 | 113,815 | 15,449 514 70 | 115,237 | 15,642
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)
31
2021 2022
(39,948) (5.423)|  (98,917)  (13,427)
17/18 42 6 58 8
6 (167) (23) (163) 2)
13 (4,941) 67D (29,876) (4,055)
5 (117,139)|  (15,900)| (121,718)|  (16,522)
8 78,913 10,712 66,557 9,034
347,227 47,133 (27,439) (3,725)
(156,035)|  (21,180) 87,674 11,901
14 | (1,385,660)| (188,089)| (1,724,156)| (234,037)
(49,351) (6,699) (146) (20)
(420,484)|  (57,076) 22,464 3,049
(1,747,543)|  (237,211)| (1,825,662) (247,815)
121,099 16,438 117,033 15,886
(100,897)|  (13,696)|  (57,462) (7,800)
(4,254) (77) (5,125) (696)
(1,731,595)|  (235,047)| (1,771,216) (240,425)
18 (110) (15) (49) ©)
17 (©)) @ @ )
6 167 23 163 22
53 7 112 15
23 | 21,431,077 | 2,909,054 | 22,626,583 | 3,071,332
23 |(19,512,901)| (2,648,681)|(20,832,117)| (2,827,752)
1,918,176 260,373 | 1,794,466 | 243,581
186,634 25,334 23,362 3,171
744,607 101,073 903,636 | 122,660
(27,605) (3,747) 25,526 3,465
22 903,636 122,660 952,524 | 129,296
942 109

22
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IFRS
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2022 31

TFS TFS

TFS
10
TFS
TFS TFS TFS
COVID-19
2021
2020 27 1ASB
IFRS IAS 39

IFRS IFRS IFRS 16 2021

2020 1ASB COVID-19 IFRS 16 IFRS 16

COVID-19
2021 30
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2022
2020 14 1ASB
2022
2020 14 1ASB
2022
2020 14 1ASB
IFRS
2020 14 1ASB
10
IFRS B3.3.6 10
2022
2017 18 1ASB IFRS 17
IFRS 17
IFRS 17
2020 23 1ASB 1AS
2023
2021 12 1ASB
1AS
2021 12 1ASB
2021 1ASB
IAS 12 15 24
2023

IAS 41

2023
1AS
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b FVOCI
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c FVTPL
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12 12

TFS

EIR
EIR
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IFRS

2021 2022
( ) ( )
24,109 25,507
15,327 19,049
13,760 13,024
17,529 11,923
6,671 7,889
10,066 7,384
5,949 7,077
4,847 6,592
5,787 6,545
5,132 6,020
7,911 12,502
4,744 3,472
121,832 126,984
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2021 2022
( ) ( )
112,395 118,246
1,661 759
2,455 2,196
588 519
40 &)
117,139 121,718
163,000 2021
167,000
2022 4,501,000
2021 4,526,000
602,000 2021
2021 2022
( ) ( )
(108,669) (86,431)
(17,702) (6,893)
(14,969) (5,616)
4,781 (2,067)
(1,004) (1,495)
(602)
(222) (473)
58,897 37,022
(23) @
@
(78,913) (66,557)
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TFS
TFS
TFS 20,281,000 2021 17,091,000
2021 2022
( ) ( )
(1,657) (1,800)
(1,050) (1,412)
(1,207) (1,477)
(686) (1,836)
(267) (328)
(80) (80)
(236) (411)
(117) (126)
(186) (106)
(38) (64)
(883) (916)
®) ©)
(37) (52)
(6,449) (8,614)
10 12 2021
11
2021 2022
( ) ( )
(1,507) (1,645)
(85) (90)
(65) (65)
(1,657) (1,800)
2021 2022
( ) ( )
(302) (258)
(302) (258)
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159,212,000
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2021 2022
( ) )
(326,053) 144,099
168,515 107,534
157,867 (249,166)
329 2,467
(64,753) (161,679)
(64,424) (159,212)
64,424,000 2022
2021 2022
( ) ( )
(186) (278)
(8D) (50)
(267) (328)
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2021
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2022

(8,541)
1,282

(11,712)

(7,259)

12,200

(11,712)

41,588

4,941

29,876

2021
( )

2022
)

(44,889)
24.90
11,179
(3,886)
(3,674)

@
41
1,282

(128,793)
25.00
32,411

593
(3,169)
@

42

4,941

29,876

2022 25.8 2021 25
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0.042

2021

1997
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2021 2022
( ) ( )
6,201,926 6,951,400
(1,598) (2,711)
6,200,328 6,948,689
2021 2022
( ) ( )
6,200,328 6,948,689
9,388,782 10,403,770
15,589,110 17,352,459
2021 2022
( ) ( )
(1,754) (1,598)
156 (1,113)
(1,598) (2,711)
ECL
ECL
ECL
2022 31
A0.326 25.0
TLT
0.042 TLT 57.4 1,000
57,400,000,000 16,600,000,000

750,000
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31
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2022 31
TLT
TLT
TLT
2021 2022
( ) ( )
1,197 1,248
51 22
1,248 1,270
2021 2022
( ) ( )
3,948 7,348
54,481 132,305
6,228 16,693
64,657 156,346
57,826 113,550
164,948 175,185
222,774 288,735
287,431 445,081
2021 2022
( ) ( )
5,103 1,680
90,957 146,635
1,043 336
97,103 148,651
15,768 132,976
171,199 144,857
186,967 277,833
284,070 426,484
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IFRS

2021 2022

( ) ( )
108 112
4 2
112 114
88 93
5 6
93 99
20 19
31 19 15
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19

25

2022

2022

31

14
31

25
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2021 2022
( ) ( )
115 225
110 49
225 274
19 56
37 52
56 108
9% 169
169 166
25.8
2021 31
25.8
2021 2022
) )
(25,962) (13,761)
33 300
12,168 41,288
(13,761) 27,827




EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

ooooooo
20
2021 2022
( ) ( )
106,200 104,900
29 2,158 2,290
721
29 548
82 198
20 69
35 64
39 35
36 34
108,570 108,859
21
2022
25.8 2021  25.0 2022 31 9,124,000 2021
2,536,000
22
2021 2022
( ) ( )
5,550 9,926
898,086 942,598
903,636 952,524
2022 31 31 1

180 242

109
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2021 2022
4,367,244 3,758,575
3,332,158 5,925,167 2,778,766 7,939,293
435,728 2,190,963 1,489,715 2,224,112
8,135,130 8,116,130 8,027,056 10,163,405
2021 2022
1,843,385 351,321 2,251,025 1,744,289
2,995,531 1,695,381 1,692,135 1,536,668
267,150 817,955 446,463 662,832
64,207 27,316 29,135
2,958,907 3,901,522 2,594,113 5,530,211
1,558 131,233 1,636 138,136
66 1,024,580 989,212
4,221 149,530 4,354 154,262
105 17,292 18,621
83,762
362 313,245
8,135,130 8,116,130 8,027,056 10,163,405
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2022
10,163,405,000

2022 31
31 8,027,056,000
2021 8,116,130,000

741237
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2021 2022
( ) ( )
3,780,940 4,367,244
(2,417) (232)
17,381,380 16,527,048
(16,881,117) (17,056, 681)
(6,756) 2,916
95,214 (81,720)
4,367,244 3,758,575
8,081,195 9,257,325
1,848 (1,729)
2,852,005 4,570,776
(1,826,230) (3,310,224)
7,185 (5.168)
141,322 207,079
9,257,325 10,718,059
2,389,065 2,626,691
(1,146) 77
1,197,270 1,528,756
(805,133) (465,212)
920 911
(154,285) 22,604
2,626,691 3,713,827
364
LIBOR
A0.15 2.01
2021 8,135,130,000
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9,154,000
592,000
25
26
2022
27
454 10,000
454 2,000
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2021 7,471,000
8,562,000
2021 2022
( ) ( )
114,500 134,199
33 40
29 8,966 11,135
681 1,221
243 297
124,423 146,892
2021
2021 2022
( ) ( )
2021 10,000 ) 4,540 4,540
2021 2,000 ) 908 908
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100
2021 29 2021
2022
28 FVOCI
( )
2020 442
FVOCI 51
2021 31 493
FVOCI 21
2022 31 514
29
100
TFS
20,281,000 2021 17,091,000
10,062,000 2021 8,776,000

30

76/237



UK
UK

UK

771237

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn



KINTO
KINTO
KINTO
KINTO
KINTO UK
KINTO

4,501,000
2,290,000
30

602,000
548,000

2021
2021

163,000 2021 167,000

2022 31

781237

2021
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2021 4,526,000

2,158,000

30

2021



2021
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2021
( )
13,943,112 15,590,708
18,271,653 21,910,022
(16,886,150) (20,184,753)
112,395 118,246
(116,340) (113,706)
(1,003) (1,495)
1,150 1,385
265,891 34,763
15,590,708 17,355,170
2021

( )
8,776 10,062
190 1,073
8,966 11,135

2021

( )
2,158 2,290
548
2,158 2,838
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31

2022

31.1

31
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2021 2022
( ) ( )
188,956 267,637
146,486 166,791
343,855 473,714
1,930,591 1,675,056
32,383 64,459
2,642,271 2,647,657
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31.2

2021 2022
( ) ( )

4,899 1,085

(7,448) 519

1,59 2,828

12,359

292 367

38 35

326 287

(297) 17,480

81/237



31.3

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

oOoOooodn

2021

( ) ( )
11 (25) a8
(11) 25 14

2022

( ) ( )
(649) (26) (675)
649 26 675

28 Fvocl
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2021 31

5,185,067 4,203,715 9,388,782
1,248 1,248

2,447,407 3,754,519 6,201,926

2,158 2,158

106,220 192 106,412

903,636 903,636

(4,367,244) (4,367,244)

(1,500,890)  (1,831,268) (3,332,158)

(67) (435, 661) (435,728)

(8,966) (8,966)

(114,533) (924) (115,457)

(4,043,296)  (1,881,871) (5,925,167)

(1,324,580) (866,383) (2,190,963)

@) 763,641 (528,870) (6,292) 228,479

(b) (757,074) 760,380 54 3,360
(a)+(b) 6,567 231,510 (6,238) 231,839
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2022 31

5,816,627 4,587,143 10,403,770

1,270 1,270

2,784,666 4,166,734 6,951,400

2,838 2,838

104,969 1,052 106,021

33,197 919,327 952,524

(3,758,575) (3,758,575)

(1,511,127)  (1,267,639) (2,778,766)

(989,895) (499,820) (1,489,715)

(11,135) (11,135)

(134,239) (1,518) (135,757)

(©) (©))

(5,536,484)  (2,402,809) (7,939,293)

(1,098,871)  (1,125,241) (2,224,112)

) (501,887) 589,847 (7,493) 80,467
(b) 568,980 (550, 383) 18,597
(@)+(b) 67,093 39,464 (7,493) 99,064
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31.4

2022 31 Al
TFS
2021 2022
( ) ( )
6,201,926 6,951,400
108,570 108,859
64,657 156,346
903,636 952,524
9,388,782 10,403,770
222,774 288,735
2,642,271 2,647,657
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2022 31 25
134,199,000 2021 114,500,000
30
61,554,000 2021 33,170,000 92,426,000
2021 75,029,000
31.5
30
2021 31 12
( ) ) «( ) «( )
171,903 268,349 2,198,745
2,817,036 1,550,511
EMTN 810,012 2,577,571 5,551,954 511,719

114,500

3,913,451 4,396,431 7,750,699 511,719
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EMTN

2021
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31 ”
( ) ( ) ( ) )
152,945 1,370,533 1,921,315 401,371
3,357,780 403,167
513,781 2,358,785 7,597,205 865,277
134,199
4,158,705 4,132,485 9,518,520 1,266,648
31 12
( ) ( ) ( ) )
(228) (17,382) (29,655) (443)
(2,175,826)  (2,033,673)  (6,062,166)  (240,434)
2,119,345 2,016,422 6,095,625 214,491
(56,709) (34,633) 3,804 (26,386)
3,856,742 4,361,798 7,754,503 485,333
31 b
( ) ( ) ( ) )
(3,887) (26,757) 61,236 14,578
(1,844,272)  (2,905,302)  (6,206,340)  (810,850)
1,814,505 2,964,328 6,176,558 781,152
(33,654) 32,269 31,454 (15,120)
4,125,051 4,164,754 9,549,974 1,251,528
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2022 31
31.6
31.7
2021 31
2022 31
32
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12
) ( ) ) )
5,254,000
5,254,000
12
) ( ) ) )
2,000,000 109,075
2,000,000 109,075
) ( ) ) )
287,431 (284,070) (8,300) (4,939)
287,431 (284,070) (8,300) (4,939)
) ( ) ) )
445,081 (426,484) (29,299) (10,702)
445,081 (426,484) (29,299) (10,702)
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32.1

2021 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
1,248 1,248
287,431 287,431
284,070 284,070
2022 31
( ) ( ) ) ( )
1,270 1,270
445,081 445,081
426,484 426,484

IFRS
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2022

2022
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2021 31 2022 31
) ( ) ) ( )
15,589,110 15,809,787 17,352,459 17,440,678
7,471 7,471 9,154 9,154
2,626,691 2,647,322 3,713,827 3,705,799
4,367,244 4,366,582 3,758,575 3,758,194
9,257,325 9,404,732 10,718,059 10,645,214
7,471 7,471 9,154 9,154
EMTN
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©)
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92/237



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn

TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (METHERLAMDS) B.V.

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 2022 2021
€'000 €000
Interestincome 5 121,718 117,139
Dividend income G 163 167
Commitment faciliy fees T 602 -
Guaranige fee income T 4,501 4526
Revenue 4 126,984 121,832
Intarest expense 8 (B6,557) (78.913)
Fee expenses a (20,281) (17.091)
Cost of funding (86.838) (96,004}
Gross margin 40,146 25828
Administration expenses 10 (8.614) (6.443)
Met gain on financial instruments (loss)gain 1 {159.212) (64 424}
Adjustment credit losses on group loans 14 {1.113) 156
Result before tax (128,793) (44,889)
Taxation 13 29,876 4,941
Result after tax (98,917) (39,948)
Met gaind(loss) an aquity instruments designated atfair value
thraugh other comprehensie income 28 21 51
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (98,898 {39.897)
Aftribuiable to:
Equity holder {98.896) (39,897}

The notes on pages 3o 41 are an integ ral partaf these Financial Statemen ts
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (METHERLAMDS) B.V.

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022 after appropriation of the result

Note 2022 2021
€000 €000
Assaets
Current assets
Loans to related companies 14 5.948,689 6.200.328
Other receivables 20 108,859 108,570
Financial guarantee assets 24 0,154 T471
Derivative financial instruments 16 156,346 64 657
Cash and cash equivalents 22 952 524 903,636
Total current assets 8,175,572 7,284,662
Non-current assets
Loans o related companies 14 10,403,770 9388782
Derivative financial instruments 16 288,735 222,774
Equity invesiment—relaied company 15 1270 1,248
Property, plantand equipment 17 15 19
Intangible assets 18 166 168
Defermed tax assats 19 27827 -
Total non-current asseis 10,724,783 9,612,882
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bomowings 23 B.027 056 8,135,130
Derivative linancial instrurments 16 148,651 ar.103
Financial guarantee liability 24 9,154 7471
Currenttax liability 21 9,124 2,536
Other liabilifes and accrued expenses 25 146 802 124 423
Bank overdraft 3 =
Total current liabilities 8,340,880 §,366,663
Net current liabilities (165,308) {1,082,001)
Non=-current liabilities.
Bomowings 23 10,163,405 8,116,130
Derivative financial instruments 16 277833 186,967
Deferred tax liabilities 19 - 13,761
Total non-currant liabilities 10,441,238 8,316 858
Net assets 115,237 214,133
Shareholder's equity
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital i) 908 808
Retained eamings 113,815 212,732
Other resarves forequity instruments PVOCH 28 514 493
115,237 214,133
Thenoleson pages 3to 41 are an infegral partof these Financial Statements
6

94/237



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn
TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

Share Retained Fair Value

Capital Earnings Reserves Total

Note €000 €000 €000 €000

Balance at 1 April 2020 208 252 620 442 254,030

Equity instruments 28 - - 51 51

Result for the year - (38, 948) - (39 848)
Total comprehensive income for

the year - (39.948) &1 (39.897)

Balance at 31 March 2021 908 212,732 493 214,133

Equity instruments 28 . . 21 21

Result for the year - {(9891T7) - (98.917)
Total com prehensive income for

the year - (98.917) 4| (98,898)

Balance at 31 March 2022 908 113,815 514 115,237

The notes on pages 9to 41 are an integral partof these Financial Statements
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 2022 2021
€000 €000
Result for the year {9B8.917) (39.948)
Adjustments for:
Depraciation and amortisation 1718 58 42
Dividend income ] (163) {167)
Taxation 13 (29.876) (4,941)
Interest income 5 {121,718) (117,139}
Interest expense 8 66,557 8O3
Fair value (gainsiiosses (27 438) 347 227
Unrealised foreign currency transiabion (gains)losses 87 674 (156,035}
Net (increase )idecrease in loans to affiliates 14 (1,724 156) {1,385 660)
Met (increase ydecrease in othercument assets (148) (49,351}
Increaseddecrease)in other current liabilites 22 464 (420.484)
(1,825,662) {1,747 ,543)
Interestreceived 117,033 121,000
Interest paid (57 462) (100,897)
Taxes paid {5,125) (4,.254)
Cash flows from operating activities (1,771,216} {1,731,595)
Purchase of intangible assets 18 (48} {110)
Purchase of preperly, plantand equipment 17 (2} (4)
Dividend received & 163 167
Cash flows from investing activities 112 B3
Proceeds from bormawings 23 22626583 21431 077
Repayments of borowings 23 {20 832117) (19,512 901)
Cash flows from financing activities 1,794 486 1,918,176
Net increase/decrease)in cash and cash equivalents 23362 186 634
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 903,636 744807
Exchange gains and {losses) on cash and cash equivalents 25526 (27 B6053)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of perlod 22 8952 524 803 636

In the cash and cash equivalent an amount of € 342 million is d eposited on short term d eposits forwhich an amount of € 109 million
has a maturity exceeding three months . See alsonote 22

The noteson pages 3to 41 are an integral part of these Financal Statements
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

MNotes to the Financial Statements
1. General information

Toyota Motor Finance (Netherdands} BV, {'the Company'} is a whaolly -owned subsidiary of Toyola Finandal
Services Corporation, The principal activity of the Company is to act as a growp finance company. The Company
raises funds by issuing bonds and notes in the intemational capital markets and from other sources and on-
lends to other Toyola companies. The Company also issues guaraniees for debt issuance of other Toyola
COMpanies.

The Company is incorporated and domicied in the Netherlands. The address of ils registered office is Word
Trade Center, Tower H, Level 10, Zuidplein 90, 1077 XV, Amsterdam, the Metherands.

The ultimate managementcompany and controling party and the largest undertaking into which the Compamys
results are consolidated is Toyots Molor Corporation {TMC), which is incorperated in Japan,

The smallest undertaking into which the Company’s results are consolidated is Toyola Finandal Senvices
Corporation (TFSC), which is incorporated in Japan.

The Financial Statemenis of Toyota Motor Corporatien can be cbiained from

The Financial Statemenis of the Company have been approved forissue by the Board of Managemenlion
26 July 2022

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting polickes applied in the preparation of these Financial Statemenis are sel oul below.
These paolicies have been consistently applied 1o all the years presenied, unless otherwise stated.

The Company has no subsidiary, joint veniure or associated company investments and is therefore not re qured
to prepare consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

* The Financial Stalements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financal
Reporing Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the Intemational Financial Reporting
Interpretations Commites (IFRIC) as adopled by the Eurcpean Union and also in accordance with the
siatutory provisions of Part 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code,

* As a resull of the accounting policies adopted, the Financial Statements of the Company are also
consistentwith all IFRS issued by the Internabonal Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and inlerpretatons
issued by IFRIC.

* The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for dervatne
financial instruments, financial assets and liabilities held for trading or designaled as measured al far
value through profit or loss, financial instruments not held in a hold to collect business model, debt
instruments thal do not meet the Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPP) test, all of which are
measured at fair value.

¢ The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimaites, It also requires management o exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degres of judgemant or complaxity, of
areaswhere assumphbons and eshmates are significant lo the Financial Stalements are disclosed in note
3

= The Company's Financial Slatemenis are presented in Euro, which is the Company's functional and
reporing cumency. Excepl as indicated financial information presented has been presented in Euro and
rounded fo the nearest thousand

Going concern

At 31 March 2022 there was an excess of current liabilities cwer current assets, Having assessed the availabie
liquidity facilities and credit suppart in place, the Board of Management has a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adequate resources lo continue o fund its cument obli gatioms for the foreseeable futune and
therefore the Financial Statements have bean prepared on a going concem basis. Further, the Company has
Credit Support Agreements in place with its parent TFSC which in turn has Credit Support Agreements in place
with the ultimate parent TMG, TFSC has agreed in the Credit Support Agreement with the Company o cause
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the Company to have a consolidated langible netwaorth, as determined in accordance with generally acespied
accounting principles of the Netherlands, and as shown on the Company's most recent audited annual balanoy
sheel, of at least EUR100 thousand so long as the Company has guarantee or credil support obligations
outstanding. Tangible net worth means the aggregate amount of issued capital, capital surplus and retained
eamings less any Intangible assets. In addition, the Credit Support Agreements warrant that if the Company
at any tme determines that itwill run short of cash or other liguid assets o mesl its payment obligations on
any securities than or subsequently to mature and that it shall have no unused commitments available under
its credit faciliies with lenders other than TFSC, then the Company will promplly notify TFSC of the shorifal
and TFSC will make available to the Company, bafore the due date of such securibes, funds sufficienl b
enable it fo pay such paymentobligations in full as they fall due.

The board of management has concluded thatthe Company is sufficiently equipped to continue with its namal
business operatons into the foreseeable futune and 5 well positoned in achieving the strategic tlargets in
accordance with il budgel The board of management i aware of risks and dependencies assocalad he
currentoparations andexpect io realize a postive gross margin like in prior years. Due fo inlerest- and exchange
rate movements the valuation of financial instruments entered into for sk management purposes giva rise bo
volatility in the result before tax. All financial instruments are held il manty and therefor the valuation resulls
for each denvative are of femporanly nature and will ulimately disappear. External developments like Cowd-
18 and impactof the warin Likraine have been assessed and consideredmanageable.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

Mew and amended standards effective for the financial year starting 1 April 2021

On 27 August 2020, the I1ASB issued Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 2,
IAS 30, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)" with amendmaents thatladdress ssues thal mightaffect financial repotng
afterthe reform of an interestrate benchmark, induding its replacement with aliematve benchmark rates, The
smendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021,

In May 2020, the IASE issued Cowid-19-Relafed Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16). The
pronouncement amended IFRS 16 Leasesto provide lessees wilh an exemplion from assessing whether a
COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modificalion. On issuance, the praciical expedientwas limiled o
rent concessions for which any reductionin lease payments affects only payments onginally due on or befone
30 June 2021.

MNew standards, amendments and interpretations issved but not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2022 and not early adopted

On 14 May 2020, the IASB issued 'Property, Plani and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use
(Amendments lo LAS 16)" regarding proceeds from selling itlems produced while bringing an asset infto the
lseation and condiion necessary for i o be capable of operating inthe manner intended by management. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2022,

On 14 May 2020, the IASE issued 'Onarous Contracts — Costof Fulfilling a Confract {Amendments fo 145 377
amending the standard regarding costs a8 company should include as the cost of fulfillinga contract when
assessing whelher a conlract is onerous. The amendments are effectve forannual reporling periods begnning
on or after 1 January 2022,

On 14 May 2020, the LASE issued amendments fo IFRS 3 o update a reference io the Conceplual Frameworc
IFRS 3, Business Combirations specifies how an enbity should accountfor the assets and liabiliies it acquires
when it oblains control of a business. IFRS 3 requires an enlity 1o refer o the Conceplual Framework for
Financial Reporting (Concepiual Framework) to delermine what constitutes an asset or a liability, The
amendmentis effective forannual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2022,

On 14 May 2020, the |ASE issued AIP IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for
deracognition of fnancial Falhfies The amendment clanfies which feas an enlily includes when it applies ha
‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B2 3 6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liabilty, The
amendmentis effective forannual periods beginning on ar after 1 January 2022,

On 18 May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, The Board published some amendmens b
IFRS 17, including a deferral of the effective date of IFRS 17 by two years so that enlias are raquired lo apply
IFRS 17 for annual pencds beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

On 23 January 2020, the |AEB issued Classificalion of Liabifiies as Curment or Non -currerd, which amended 145
1 Presentation of Financial Statements. The amendments clanfied how an entity classifies debt and other
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financial llabilibes as current or non-current in particular circumstances. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023,

On 12 February 2021, the IASE [ssued 'Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to 1AS B to help
enfiies to distinguish betweean accounting policies and accounbing estimates. The amendments are effectve for
annual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2023

On 12 February 2021, the IASE issued ‘Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments fo 1AS 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2)° with amendments that are intended 1o help preparers in deciding which accounting
palicies o disclose in their inancal statements. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023

On 7 May 2021, the IASE issued Defared Tax related to Assels and Liabilities arsing from a Single Transacton,
The amendments namow the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 (recogniion
exemplion)so thal it nolonger appliesio ransactions hab on inibal recognibon, give rise lo equal laxable and
deductible lemporary differences. Tha amendments are effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1
January 2023,

Amendments to IFRS 1, First-ime Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards — Subsidiary as 8
first-fme adopter, and 1AS41, Agriculfure = Taxation in falr value measurements, both effective for annual
perncds beginning on or after 1 January 2023, have been reviewed by the Company and are deemed not
applicable

The new standards, amendments and interpratations issued are not expected io have a matenal effecton the
Company. There are no other IFRS or IFRIC interpretations that would be expeded to have a material impad
on the Company.

Segmental reporting

The single operating segmentis reported in a manner consistentwith the internal reporting provided fo the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operakng decision-maker, who is respensible for allocating resources and
assaessing parformance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Management that makes
strategic decisions.

Forelgn currency
Transactons and balances

The Fimancial Statements are presented in Euro, whichis the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency fransactions are fransfated into the funclional currency using the exchange rates prevailingal
the dates of the fransachons. Foreign exchange gains and losses resuling from the settlement of such
ransactions and from the franslation al year-end exchangerales of monetary assels and liabiities denominaied
in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement. in ‘Net gain on financial instruments {ioss )igain’

Financial assets

The classification and measuwrement of financial assets under FRS 9 is determined by the business mode n
which tha assals are held and wheather the conltrachial cash flows are Solaly Paymenis of Principal and Interest
(SPPI). Under IFRS 9, financial assets can be measured at amortised cosl, Fair Value through Crther
Comprehensive incomae (FVOCH) or Fair Value Threugh Profit or Loss (PVTPL).

The dassiflicaton depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acguired. Management
determines tha classifcationof the investments atinitial recogniion. Regular-way rades of denvatives contrads
are accounied for ona trade date basis, and regular-way trades of all other financial assets are accounied for
on a setfernanl dale basis. A linancial assel (or, where applicable_a part of a financial assetor part of a group
of similarfinancal assels}is primarnly derecognised when the rights {o receive cash flows from the asseis has

axpined.

Debtinstruments atamortised cost

The Company's loans o Toyola group related enfifies, cash and cash equivalents, and other rece ivables are
classified as debtinstruments at amorised cost Loans o related entities are Initially recognised at fair value
including any incremenial ransachkon costs. Subsequent recognition is at amortised cost using e effeckhe

interest method, Guarantee fees receivable from fellow subsidiaries in respect of debt guaranteed by the
Company are included in ‘Other receivables’ in the Statementof linancial position.
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b)  Financlal assets designated at FVOCH (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company imevocably classifies its equity Invesiments at FVOCH, Gains and losses
an these equity instnuments are never recycled to profit Dividends are recognized in profit or loss as Dividend
income. Equity instruments at FVOCI are noi subjectio an impairment assessment

c} Financial assats at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include management's danvative portfdio. The Company
enters info derivatives fo mitigate the risks assoclated with other underlying financial assets and financal
liabilities.

Derivatives ane initially recognised at fair value on the date a denvative contract s entered into and ane
subsequenily adjusted atfair value, Transaction costs are expensedin the Statement of comp rehansive income.
The method of recagnising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrumant, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. Consequentiy, all changes inthe fair vaue
of any financial instruments, netof accrued intereston derivatives, are recognised immed ately in the Statement
of com prehensive income, within ‘Netgains / (losses)on financial instruments’. Accrued intereston derivatives
is recorded in the income siatem entwithin “Interest expansa”

Property, plant and equipment

lems of property, plant and eguipment are carmed al cost less any accumulated depreciaton and any
aceurm ulated impamment losses.

Deprectation |s charged lo profit or loss on a straight-line basis so as to write off the depreciable amount of
property, plant and equipmentover the estimated useful life of the assets as follows:

] Fixhure & Fitings: 5 years
o Furniture! & years
o Compuber hardware: 5 years

The assets’ resdual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnale, al each reporting date.

Gains and losses on disposal of itemns of property, plantand equipment are determined by companng proceeds
with the carrying amount. Thesa are included in "Administration expenses’in the Statemeni of comprehensva
income

Intangible assels

Intangible assets that are acguired by the Com pany are slated at cost less accumulated amartisation and any
accumulaled impairment losses.

Amortisation is changed to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assel's esimated useful life and is
includedin "Administration expenses’in the Statementof comprehensive income

The estimaied usaful economiclives are as follows:

-] Computer software: 5 years

The assels’ values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted i appropriate. at each reporing date.

Gains and losses on disposal of items of intangible assets are delermined by comparing proceeds with the

camying amount These are included in ‘Administration expenses’ in the Statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment of non-financial assets

Animpairmentloss is the amountby which the carmying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

At each reporting date the Company assesseswhether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired,
I any such indication exists, the recoverable amounlol the assel is estimated.

Property, plant, equipment aswell as intangible assets are subject to an impaiment review if there are events
or changes in circumstance which indicate that the carrying amounimay not be recoverable.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash and depositswhich can be realised within three months, These
include overnight money marketdeposits with banks, currenlaceountand depositaccount balances with banks
and short-term investments.

Cash and cash equivalents are m easured at amortised cost

The cash flow stalement has been drawn up in accordance with the indirect method, making a distnction
between cash flows from operating, invesiment and financing activities. Cash flows related to interest
payments, receipts and tax paym ents are classilied as cash lows from oparaling activities.

Borrowings

Borowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently atamorised
cost Recognibion and de-recognilion ison a setlemant basis.

Depending on the maturity date of the contracl less than 12 menihs or more than 12 months, the borrowing s
classified as currentor non-current respectively.

Taxation

The charge for cumenttax is based on the results for the period as adjusted for itams that are not taxable or
disallowed, It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enaclad per the reporting
date.

Delerred income tax is pravided in Tull, using the balance sheat iabilly method, on lemporary differences ansing
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their camyingamounts in the Financal Statements. Howewver,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arlses from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction otherthan a business combination that af the time of the transaction affects neither accounting, nor
taxable profitor loss,

Deferred income tax is determined using 1ax rates {and laws) that have been enacled or substantively enacied
by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax assel Is realised or the
deferredincome tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assels are recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that fulure taxable profit will be
available againstwhich the tem porary differences can be utilised.

Deferrad Income [ax assels and llabiibes are offsel when there 15 a legally enforceable right 1o offs el current
tax assets against curreni tax liabilities and when the defermed income tax assels and Habilites relate lo ncome
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or differeniiaxable enbities whene
there 5 anintenton o seftle the balanceson a net basis.

Guarantees

The Company Issues guarantees to debt holdars of ather TMC subsidianes, The Company receives guaranies
fees from TMC subsidiaries in respect of the guaranieed debl in issuance. The guaraniees are issued under
the credit supportthe Company has with TF5C and forwhich the Company pays a credit supportfee. The inital
falr value is the presentvalue of the future cash llows al the pointol issuance of the guaranies

Revenue recognition

Interest income

Inberest income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) mathod tor all financial assels measured of
amortised cost The EIR is the rate that discounis esimated fulure cash receipts through the expected e of
the financial assetorliabilidy or, when appropriate, a shorer penod, to the gross carmying amount of the finanasl
assel

The EIR 15 calculated by laking into account fransaction costs and any discount or premium an the acquisiton

of thi financial assel, as wallas fees and costs that ane an integral part of ha EIR. Tha Company recognzes
Inlerest income using a rate of return thal represents the best estmale of a constant rate of relurn over the
expected life of the loan. Hence, the EIR calculation atso lakes into account the effect of polentially differem
interest rates thal may be charged al various stages of the financial assels expecied ile, and other
characteristica of the product life eycle (including prepayments, penalty interestand charges)
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If expeclations of fixed mie financal assets” or Habilies’ cash flows ame revised for reasons otier han credt
nsk, then changes lo future confractual cash flows are discounted at the orginal EIR with a consaquenial
adjustment to the carying amount Thea difference from the previous camying amountis booked as a positive or
negalive adjusiment bo the carmpaing amount of the financial asset or llability on the balance sheal with a
comesponding increase or decrease in Interest revenuefexpensecalculatedusing the effecive interestmethod.,

‘Guarantee fee income

Guarantee fee income |s recognised during the life of the guarantee on an accruals basis in accordance wih
the substance of the relevant agreements,

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the nght o receive paymentis established.

Committed facility fee income

Cemmitled facilgy fee income is recognised on accrual basis

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The notes o the Financial Statements sel oul areas where significant judgement, complex calculations or
assumplions have been used 1o arrive atthe Financial Statements presented. Areas of significant judgement
or complexity will include the fair valuaBon of financial instruments aswell as expected credit losses.

3.1 Fair value estimation of financial instruments

3.2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not raded in an active marketis determined by using valuation
techniques, The Company uses a variety of methods and market assumplions that ane based on marked
conditions existing at each reporting date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments ams
used for long-term debt. Other lechnigues, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine e
fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of interest ra be swaps, Gross CUrmency Swaps
and forward foreign exchange contracks is calculated a5 the presentvalus of the estmated future cash flows,

The nominal value less impasment provision of other receivables and payables, normially maturing within 30
days, are assum ed to approximate teir fair values. The fair value of financial liabiibes for disclosure purposes
is astimated by discounting the future conlractual cash flows at the currant market interest rate that is available
to the Company for similarfinancial instruments.

Initial recognition and valuation of guarantees

The initial fair value recognition of guaraniea abilites, in relabon 1o related party debt issuance, is required by
IFRS 8. As the guarantees of related party debt are not actively raded and na initial fee is charged for entering
inta the guaraniee, a valuation lechnique is required 1o assess the inital liakility to the third -party debt holdar,

The Company uses the discounied future inceme cash flows over the |ife of the guarantee kb assess the initial
guaraniee liability. The initial recognition of the guarantee liability is calculated using the market interest rates
applicable 1o the specific currency of debtissuanceon the date the related party issues the debt. The estim aton
of the inikal fair value of the guaraniees is subject to a sgnificant level of management judgement and
complexity, as the individual related group companies do not have a separate credit rating from that of the
overall Teyola Meler Corporabion group_ A guaraniee assel |s recognised of an amount equal to the guaranise
liahility. Changes in the value of the guarantee liability are matched by equal changes in the value of the
fguaraniee asset; since such changes have no impacton the Statement of comprehensive incoms, no sensitivily
analysisof the guarantes liability is included inthe noles 1o the Financial Statements.
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4. Breakdownby geographical market
The Company consists of a single operating reporting segment as defined under IFRS 8. Income generaton
is principally from lending to relaled companies, with other income generabon from guaraniees of relaed
companies and from other invesiment and depositincome incidental to the primary funding activities

Income can be categonsed geographically as follows:

2022 2021

€000 E'000

LUK {group) 25 507 24,109
MNerway ([group) 19,049 15,327
South Africa 13024 13,760
Thailand (group) 11,923 17,529
ltaly (group) 7,889 8671
Russia {group) 73684 10,066
Sweden (group) 7077 5,949
Poland (group) 6,502 4847
Garmany (group) 8,545 5,787
Spain (group) 6,020 5132
Other countries (group) 12,502 7011
Interest received from others 3472 4,744
Total 126,984 121,832

5. Interest income

2022 2021

€'000 €000

Interest income on loans to related companies 118,246 112,305
Interast income on deposits 759 1,681
Imterest (premium ) income on commercial paper 2,196 2455
Interest income an collateral deposits paid 518 588
Interest income on corporale tax {2} 40
Total 121,718 117,138

6. Dividend income

The Company received a diwdend from Toyola Leasing (Thailand) Co. Lid. of € 163,000 in the year (2021: €
1670004,

T. Other related party income

The Company guarantees the debt of cerain other TMC subsidiaries for which it receives guarantee fesa
income. All guarantes fee income is from related parties. Guaraniae les income for the year 2022 was
€4 501000 (2021:€ 4 528 000).

The Company entered into commitment facilities during the year with a group of banks on behalf of certan

related parties. All fees related to the facilifes charged by the banks are invoiced pro rata to the related parties
Commitment facilty lees income for the yearwas € 602, 000 (2021 € -),
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B. Interest expense
2022 2021
€000 £'000
Interest charge on eurs medium term noles (B5.431) (108 683)
Interest expansa from bank bormowing {6,893} {17,702}
Interest expense on commercia paper {5 616} {14 ,069)
Interast com ponent of foreign exchange derivative contracts (2.067) 4781
Interest paid on loan assets {1,495) {1.004)
Commitmentfacity fees (602) .
Interest expense on collateral deposits received (473) (222)
Metinlerest on swap agreemenis ar02z2 58,807
Bank overdraftinterest (2 (23)
Interest on wage tax paid - (2
Total (66,5657} (TB,813)
9. Fee expenses
The Company has the benefit of a credit support agreement with Toyota Financial Services Corporaton
(TFSC'), TFSC has the benefitof a credil support agreement with Toyata Motor Corporation. The Company
pays credil support fees o TFSC based on the Company's debl issuance and guaraniees issued to relakd
parties, The creditsupport fees chargedin the year by TFSC were € 20281 000 (2021:€ 17,091,000,
10. Administration expenses
2022 2021
€'000 €000
Staff costs (1,800} {1,657}
Legal fees (1412 (1.050)
Related party costs (1477} {1,207)
Committed facilibes {1,836) (G8E6)
Independent auditor's expenses (328) (267)
Other assurance sanices (B0} (80
Communication Expense (#11) (236)
Office ren {126} {117)
Rating annual fees {106) {186)
Tax advisor fees (64 (28]
Othar administration expenses (918) (883
Depreciation of PPE (B} {5
Amarksation intangible assels {521 {37}
Total (8.814) [E.449)

The Company had an average of 12 employees, 2 seconded and 10 local (2021: 11 employees, 2 seconded

and 8 local) during the year.
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Staff costs consist of the fellowing expenses and Include the payroll costs of seconded em ployees:

2022 2021
€000 €000
Wages, salares and bonuses {1,645) {1.507)
Social security cosls {290} (85)
Pension premiums (defined pension scheme on accruals basis) {B5) (B5)
Total {1,800} (1,657)

Wages, salaries and bonuses (on accruals basis)incdude remuneration of key management. The fable below
consis! of all payments and benefits to direclors af the Company.

2022 w0

€000 €000
Shiort-lerm employes benefits (258) {302}
Total (258) {302)

Het gains ! (losses) on financial instruments

Mel gains and losses anse from beth foreign exchange rate movements and from interest rabe movem ants on
the folliowing categones of financial instruments:

2022 2021
€000 €000
Galns [ (losses) arlsing from forelgn exchange rate
movements
Derivative finandaal instruments 144 099 [326.053)
Loans and recelvables al amortised cost 107.534 188,515
Financial iabilities measured alamomsed cost (249,166) 157 B&T
2467 329
Gains | (losses) arising from interest rate movements
Fair value gains/ (losses)on financial instrum ents {181.679) (B4.753)
Total (159.212) (B4.424)

The Company issues debl to third parties and loans lo related parties in a number of currencies, and then
swaps this bomowing and lending back into one of four funding books: US Dallar (USD), Pound Steding (GBP),
Japaness Yen (JPY) and Euro (ELUR)

The effect of foreign exchange rate movements on the markei value of the derivative financial Instruments s
offset by equal and opposite exchange losses or gains on the underying financial assets and liabilities, Tha
net gains and losses ansing from forelgn exchanga rate movements anse from the Company's net foregn
expasure to GBP, USD and other currencies

The Company measures dervatives atfar value whereas the other linancial assets and liabilities are measumnd
at amorised cost. The Company does not apply hedge accounting. Therefore, the effectof interest movements
on the market value of the denvative financial instrum ents i$ not offset by an opposite movement on the
underlying financial assets and habilities leading fo velatlity in the Statementofl comprehensive ncome.

The resull on financial instrum ents declined from € 64424 000 losses forthe year ended March 2021 o
€ 159,212,000 losses for the year ended March 2022. The loss for the penod was caused by (i) the reversal of

previous gains on financial instruments coming to maturity during the pericd and (i) interast rate movemenks
on contracts hedging the Company’s lending and funding operation.
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12, Independent auditor's expenses

Administration expenses include the following fees paid to the Company’s independent audiors Emst & Young
Accountants LLP forthe statutory audit

2022 2021
€000 €000
Audit (statulory), Other audit-related work (2T78) {186)
Audit - Other assurance services (50} [(B1)
Total (328) (267)
13. Taxation
2022 2021
€000 €000
Current
Taxation on profil/ {(loss)for the year (11,712} (8.541)
Pricr pariod tax adjustment - 1,282
(11,712} (¥.2549)
Deferred
Recognition of iming differences 41,568 12.200
Total 29,876 4,941

The tax on the Company’s result before fax differs from the amounis that would arise using the weighled
average statulory tax rate applicable o the resull of the Company as follows.

2022 2021

€'000 €000
Results before tax {128,793) (44 889)
Weighted average tax rate forthe year 25.00% 24 80%
Tax calculated at welghted average tax rate applicable 32411 11,178
Change in tax rates on deferred tax balances 583 {3,886)
Fareign irrecoverable withholding tax (3,169) (3.674)
Taxable expense (1) {1
Mon-laxable income 42 41
Prigr period tax adjustment - 1,282
Total 29,876 4,941

The current tax rate is 25.8% for calendaryear 2022 (2021: 25%) in the Netherands.,
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14, Loans te related companies

The Company lends to ather TMC subsidiaries on both a fixed rate and a floating rate basis. All fized rate
lending (with tenors longer than six months) is swapped into three month floating basis in line with the
Company's risk managementpolicy,

The currency of related party lending i1s delermined by counferparty demand and then either funded diredly
from ane of four main fundingbooks (USD, GBP, JPY and EUR) or swapped backinto the appropriate funding
currency using a matching currency swap.

Under IFRS 9 the Company has developed an impaimment medel for linancial assets. The expected credilloss
(ECL) is calculated over all oulstanding loan assets (curment and non-current). The total calculated amountis
deducied from oulstanding currentlocan assets

2022 2021
€000 €'000
Current assets
Loans to related companies 6,951,400 6,201 928
Expecied cradit loss (2711 1.588)
Current loans to related companies 6,948,689 6,200,328
2022 2021
€000 €000
Currenticans to related parties 6,948 680 6,200 328
Men-current loans to related parties 10,403 770 9,388,782
Total 17,352,459 15,589,110
Movement in expected credit loss:
2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Balance at 1 April {1,598) {1.754)
(Addition) f release provision {1,113) 156
Balance at 31 March (2711} (1.598)

In accordance with IFRS 9, the entire porlfiolio of financial assels 15 classified as stage 1 given the
creditworthiness and payment history of the related companies. Further, all current year movementin the ECL
relabes o a reserve based upon an updated expected credil loss calculation fram the increase in the losn
balance, The 1 year probability of default (pd) of TMC, as published by Bloomberg, is a significant part of the
ECL calculation. The ECL-provision increased compared to prior year due 1o increased lending balance
combined with the 1 year pd of TMC that was higher compared ko prior year.

Mo ralaled party loans are gverdue and thare has been no acteal impairment of relaled pary loans either in
the curren! or previous financial years. There has been no renegotiation of any loans that would othersisa
have been past due arimpaired,

Interest rates on group lending can be either fixed or floating. The interest range for group lending on 31 Manh
2022 was between (0.326)% and 250 % perannum, depending on the curmency of the loan,

CQuitside the calculaled expectad credit loss no otherimpairmentprovisions or losses have been incymed in the
current or previous financial year for any class of financial assets.
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15. Equity Investment - related company

The Company owns0.042% (2021: 0.042% ) of the issued share capital of Tovola Leasing (Thailand) Co. Ltd
{"TLT"). a company domiciled in Thalland. TLT has issued share capital of 57 4 million shares (lace value
1,000 Thai Baht {THB) pershare). Of the registered share capital of THB 57 400,000,000, THB 16,600,000,000
is fully paid up. The onginal costof the investmentin 1997 was € 750,000

Management has assessed the fair value of the investmentin TLT with reference lo discounied cash fiow
modelling of TLT assets and liabilities, and by applying the current market interest rates and exchange rates
prevailing on 31 March 2022, The investmentin TLT shares at the reporting date is measured atfair value
The valuation of TLT. although using third-party markel data, is subject io management judgement when
assessing the probable cash ows from e current assel base. The invesimeantin TLT is dassilied asa level
Jinvestimentas shown in Mot 32 .1

livestment in Toyola Leasing (Thailand) Cea, Lid 2022 2021

€000 €000
Balance at 1 Agril 1248 1,197
Fair value adjusiment 22 51
Balance at 31 March 1270 1,248

16. Derivative financial instruments

The dervative linancial instruments ara calegonsed as carmed al Tair value through pmhtnr loss. The far
values of derivative contracts are shown in the table below, Addibonal disdosuwes are set out in the accounting
poficies relating to nsk management

2022 2021
€000 €000
Darivative financial instruments
Current assets
Interest swaps 7.348 3,848
Cross-curmancy swaps 132,305 54 451
Farward fereign exchange confracts 16,683 6,228
Total current asseis 156,346 64,657
Derivative financial instruments
Hon-current assets
Interest swaps 113,550 57 826
Cross-cumency Swaps 175,185 164,948
Total non-current assets 288,735 222,774
Dearivative financial instruments
Total assets 445 081 287 431
20
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022 021
€000 €000
Derivative financial instruments
Current labilities
Interest swaps 1680 5,103
Crosg-cumency Swaps 146635 90 957
Farward foreign exchange contracts 336 1,043
Total eurrent liabilities 148,651 87,103
Derivative financial instruments
Non-current liabilities
Interest swaps 132976 15,768
Cross-cuMmancy Swaps 144 857 171,189
Tetal non-current liabilities 277833 186,967
Derivative financial instruments
Tatal liabilities 426 484 284,070

Derivative assets and llabilibes are recognised al fair value through profitand loss.

I accordance with IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement”, the Company has
reviewed all contracts for embedded denvatives and found there are none. Denvative assels and liabilities are
recognised al fair value through the income statement. All derivative contracts have coflateral agreements
attached. Therefore, the debitcredit valuation adjustmentis not considered material and is not considered in
delermining the fair value of derivative assets and liabilities,

17. Proparty, plant and equipment

2022 2021
Computer Computer
hardware and hardware and
office equipment affice equipment
€000 €000
Cost
Costbifwd at 1 Apnl 112 108
Addibons 2 4
Total 114 112
Dapreciation
Depreciation bfwd at1 April a3 B8
Depreciation charge forthe vear B 5
Total as 83
Reconciliation at the beginning and end of the year
Opening net book amaunt - at 1 Apnl 19 20
Closing net book amount - at 31 March 15 19
21
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18. Intangible assets

2022 2021
Computer Computer
software software
€000 €000
Cost
Cost bifwd at 1 April 225 115
Additions 49 110
Total 274 225
Amortisation
Amortisation bifwd at1 Apnl 56 19
Amortigation eharge for the year 52 ar
Total 108 58
Reconciliation at the beginning and end of the year
Opening net book amount - at 1 April 169 =53]
Closing net book amount - at 31 March 186 169

19. Deferredtax

Deferred taxis provided in full on lemporary differences under the balance sheatliabilty method. using the tax
rate of 25 8% that will be the applicable corporaie tax rate as of 1 January 2022. The lax rates apply io calendar
years.

The calculation of the expecied creditloss, as stated in note 14, had a reverseimpact, againstthe currenttax
rate of 25%, on the balance as of 31 March 2021 and 25%-25.8% on the balance as of 31 March 2022 of
deferred tax assats.

The movement on deferred lax assels as well as on deferred tax liabilities is shown below:

2022 2021
€000 €'000
Doferred tax bifwd 1 April {13,761) (25.862)
Im pact from expected creditloss adjustment 300 33
Fair valuation of assets and Nabilities through profitor loss 41,788 12,168
Total 27 827 (13.781)

Delerred tax assals (liabiliies) have baen meognised for all tax gains (losses) and other (emporary diferences
giving rise to deferred tax assets (liabilities), because itis possible thatthese assets (liabilities)will crystalliss.
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20. Other receivables

Hote 2022 2021

€'000 €000

Collateral deposits posted 104 800 106, 200
Related party receivables 2,240 2,158
Prepaid Commitmen Facility Fees 721 -
Commitment Facility Fees receivables (GRP CO) 28 548 s
Mon-related party prepaid expenses 108 a2
Interest receivable {cash collateral posted) 63 20
Other receivable 654 a5
Depositfor rented property 35 349
Prepaid rent 34 36
Total 108,859 108,570

Collateral deposits paid are cash deposits with denvative counterpanies hald as collateral in respect of
denvative contracts. The fair value of the deposits approximates the camying amaount

The Company entered inta committed faciities for certain related parties with banks. Besides quarterly fees
the Company paid upfront fees to the banks. These fees are amortized in a straight line method during he
year.

21. Current taxes

Current faxes are charged based on the prevailing tax rates. The tax rales apply lo calendar vears and profi
for the accounting year is therefore pro-rated batween the two calendar vears on a day-countbasis io com puie
the effectve tax rate. The curent tax rate |5 25.8% for calendar year 2022 (2021: 25.0%} In the Netherlands
Corporation tax liability at 31 March 2022 is € 9,124,000 {2021 tax liability € 2 538 ,000). The tax payments as
made during the year in which the profits are eamed on an estimated basis, The extent to which the final

taxable charge differs from the original estimated amount results in a current tax asset or liability due to over-
or underpayment of tax respectively,

22, Cashand cash equivalents

2022 2021
€000 €000
Cash and bank balances 9826 5,550
Deposits for liquidity purposes 942 598 B98,086
Total 952,524 903,636

&5 of 31 March 2022 'Deposits for liquidity purposes’ consists of 11 short term deposits with maturites
ranging from 3 days 1o 31 days and 4 short term deposits, with a tolal sum of € 108 million, with matunikes
ranging from 18010 242 days, exceading three months. There are no resti cions on cash and cash equivakens
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23. Borrowlings
2022 2024

Current Hon-current Current Hon-currant

€000 €'000 €000 €000

Commarcal paper 3758575 . 4 367 244 -

Medium term note 2778766 7939203 3332158 5925167

Bank leans 1489715 2224112 435,728 2,190,963

Total 8,027,056 10,163,405 B.135,130 B.116,130

2022 2021
Beorrowings by currency Current MNen-current Current Mon-current
€000 €000 €'000 €000
Pound Sterling 2,251,025 1,744 289 1,843 385 351321
Us Doliar 15602135 1,536 668 2995531 1695381
Australian Dellar 446 483 662,832 267,150 817,855
New Zealand Dollar 29135 . 64,207 27 318
Euro 2,594,113 5530211 2,958 307 3801522
Hong Keng Dollar 1636 138,136 1,558 131,233
Japanese Yen 989,212 . 66 1,024 580
Morwegian Krome 4,354 154 262 4221 140,530
South African Rand 18621 . 105 17.2092
Swiss Franc z A3 762

Swedish Krona 382 313245 . i
Total 8,027,056 10,163,405 B.135,130 8116130
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24.

Borrowings 2022 2021
€000 €'000
Commercial paper
Starl 4 367 244 3,780,240
Acerued interest {232) (2417}
Isste 16,527.048 17,381,380
Redemption {17,056,681) (16,881,117}
Amortisation 2018 (6,758}
FX revaluation (81,720 a5 214
Total 3,758,575 4367 244
Medium term notes
Start 8,257 325 B,081,185
Aetcrued interest {(1.720) 1,848
Issue 4 5T0776 2852005
Redemphon (3.310,224) {1.826,230)
Amortisation (5,168) 7.185
FX revaluation 207.079 141,322
Total 10,718,059 8,257,325
Bank loans
Stant 2,526 681 2389, 085
Aecrued inberest 7T {1,148}
Issue 1,528,756 1,187,270
Redemplion {485,212) {805,133}
Amortisation 911 220
FX revaluation 22 604 {154 285}
Total 3,713,827 2,626,601

The Company's principal borrowings are from shart-term commercia paper programmes, 2 medium term noe
pragramme and leng-term bank borrowing. Commercial paper is a short-term debtinstrumentnormally isssed
at a discount and repaid st face value, The Company can issue commercial paperwith maturities between 1

day and 364 days. Interest rates of bank borrowings are fixed or floating (mostly based on the relevant thres
manths Libor plus spread), The interest range of bank barrowings on 31 March 2022 was between (0.15%)
and 2.01% per annum. As at the 31 March 2022 there are current borrowings of € 8,027 056 000 (2021: €

8,135.130,000) and non-current bomowings of € 10,163 405,000 (2021:€8,116,130,000).
Financial guarantee lability

The current value of guaraniees oulstanding is: € 9,154 000 (2021: € 7.471,000) and these relale only to
guaraniees issued in resped of debt issuance for ather related group companies (see note 2},

0 the iotal, € 582,000 relates to bonds maturing in less than one year and € 8,562,000 relates to bonds.
maturing in greater than one year.
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25, Other llabllities and accrued expenses

Note 2022 2021

€000 €000

Collateral deposits received 134159 114,500
Interest payable on collateral deposits 40 33
Related party accounts payable 20 11,135 8,966
Accrued adminisiralion expensas 121 681
Other accrued taxes 207 243
Total 146,892 124,423

Collateral depaosits received are cash deposits from derivative counterparies held as collateral under derivatve
contracts,

26

Capital management
The Company's intlemal objectives when maragng capilal are:
a Te saleguard the Company's ability b conlinue as a going concern, in order to provide retums for
sharehalders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

o To provide an adequate retum to the Company's primary shareholder, Toyata Financial Senvices
Corporation, by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk.

During the financial year 2022 the Company's capital management strategy remained unchanged from e
financial year 2021 and was o generale a positive gross margin and add the Tlinal resultto retained samings.

The Company has complied withintemal capital requirements by maintaning adeguate capital during the year.

27. Share capital

2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Authorised
10,000 (2021: 10,000) ordinary shares of € 454 each 4 540 4 540
Issued and fully paid up
2,000(2021: 2,000) ordinary shares of € 454 each 908 308

100% of the share capital of the Company is owned by Toyota Financial Services Corporation (see nate1)
Appropriation of Result

The loss lor the linancal year 2021 was deducled from the retained earnings as agreed in the Annual Ganeml
Meeting of Shareholders heldin Amstaerdam on 28 July 2021,

The Board of Management proposed thatthe boss for the pastfinancial year 2022 be deducted from the retained
eamings.
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28, Other reserves for equity instruments FVOC! - movement

€'000
Al Apnil 2020 442
Movement
Unrealised gains on equity instruments FVCC| 51
At 31 Mareh 2021 493
Unrealised gains on egquity instrumeants FVOCH 21
Met fair value reserve at 31 March 2022 E14

The fairvaluation reserve anses from the fairvaluation of equity investments and the relaled deferred taxakon
an the fair valuation adjustment.

29. Related-party transactions
Parent and ultimate controfling party

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Toyota Financial Services Corporation (TFSC), a company
incorporated in Japan. The ultimate management com pany and controlling party is Toyata Mator Corporaton
(TMC), & company incorporated inJapan

Transactions with parent company

During the year TFSC provided creditsupport to the Company inrespectof debt issuance in the capital markess
and related party guaraniees. The fees charged were € 20,281 000 (2021: € 17,091,000} with € 10,062 000
(2021:€ 8,776,000) outstanding atyear-and. The outstanding amountbears no interest and the payment term
is 30 days.

Fellow subsidiaries
Dwring the year transactions were enfered into with the following TMC subsidianes:
Toyota Molor Credit Corporation
Toyota Financial Services (UK) PLC, as well as its subsidiaries and associated underakings:

Toyota Financial Services (UK) PLC subsidiaries:
Toyola Finance Finland Oy

Toyala Financial Services Belgium NV SA
Toyota Financial Services Czechsr.o.

Toyota Financial Services Siovakia s.ro

Toyota Financial Services Denmark A/S

Toyola Financial Services Hungary Rt

Toyala Financial Services (reland) DAC

Toyota Financial Services ltaly SpA

Toyota Financial Services Kazakhstan

Toyola Financial Services (UK) PLC associated undertakings:
Toyala Financal Serviees (South Africa) (Proprietary) Limied

Toyola Kreditbank GmbH, as well as with ils branches and subsidianes:

Toyota Kreditbank GmbH branches:
Toyata France Financement
Toyota Financial Services Austria
Toyola Financial Services NMorway
Toyota Financial Services Spain
Toyola Financial Services Sweden

Toyota Kreditbank GmbH subsidiaries.
27
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AD Toyola Bank

Toyota Leasing (O00)

Toyota Bank Palska 5.4

Toyola Leasing Polska Sp.z oo,

Toyota Leasing {Thailand ) Co. Lid

Toyola Financial Services Korea Lid

Toyola Capital Malaysia Sdn. Bhd,

Toyata Financial Services Philippines Corparation
Toyola Financial Services Singapore Pte Lid
Toyata Financial Services Vietnam Co. Lid

Kinto Europe GmbH, as well as ils subsidiaines;
Kinto Spain S.L.

Kinto France SAS

Kinto ltalia Sph

Kinto UK

Kinta Germany GmbH

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

Guarantees
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The Company eamed € 4,501,000 (2021: € 4,528 000) from fellow subsidiaries as guaraniees fees. The
amountrelating to the guarantee fees thatremained unpaid at year-end was € 2,280,000 (2021:€ 2158 ,000)
The oulstanding amounibears no interest and the paymentiem is 30 days.

Commitment Facility Fees

The Company eamed € 602,000 (2021 € -} from fellow subsidianes as reimbursement for charges paid o
banks forcommitment faciliies the Company had entered into for these relaled parties. The amountrelating
to the commitment facility fees that remained unpaid at year end was € 548,000 (2021 € -). The outstanding

amauntbears nointerest and the paymentterm is 20 days.

Dividends

The Company received € 163,000 (2021: € 167,000) in dividends as disclosed in note 6 on its unlisied

imvestmentin Toyota Leasing (Thailand ) Co. Lid.

Borrowings

At 31 March 2022, there was no borrowings from related companies (2021:€0)

Lending

The summary of loans io fellow subsidiaries and the Income and expenses incurred thereon during the yearis

setout below:

Loans to related parties

Balance atthe beginning of the year
Loans advanced during the year
Loans repand

interest income

Interest received

Inlerest expense

Interest paid

Exchange revaluation

Ending Balance

2022 2021
€000 €000
15,500,708 13,943,112
21 910,022 18271653
{20,184 753) (16,886,150
118,246 112,295
(113,706) (116,340)
{1,485) {1,003
1385 1.150
34,763 265891
17,355,170 15,580,708

Other than the calculated expected creditloss no impairment has been recognised on the amounts outstanding
at year-end (see nate 14), Transachions with related companies are at arm's fength prices
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30.

Diractors
Mr. K, Noda was appainied as director of the Company on 1 June 2021,
Transactions with directors, management and employees

There were no lransactions, other than amoluments, with direclors, management or employeas during he
Year

Summary of related party payables included in other liabilities

2022 2021

€000 €000

Creditsupport fees payable to parentcompany 10,082 BTTE

Business and administration services payable o relaled companies 1073 190

Total 11,136 £,966
Summary of guarantees and related party receivables

2022 2021

€000 €000

Related party receivablesforguaraniees 2,280 2158

Commitment facilty fees receivable 548 -

Taotal 2,838 2,158

Amounis receivable from related parties have notbeen impaired.

Contingent liabilities

The Company issues guaraniees o debt holders of other TMC subsidiaries, including AQ Toyola Bank in
Russia. The Company receives guaraniee fees from TMC subsidianies in respect of the guaranteed debl in
iIssuance,

The Company assesses the need for provisions by reviewing the nel asseis and profitability of the com panies
for the yearended 31 March 2022, The accounts of the respective deblissuers indicate thatthere are adequale
assels to cover the bamawings. The guaranteed bonds issued by AQ Toyola Bank are Russian domestic bonds
and there are no restrictions for AD Toyola Bank to make payments related to its bonds. AD Toyola Bank has
sufficient liquidity to meetits obligations under thesa bonds.

Mo provisions have been required against contingent liabilties in elther the current or priar fiscal years

Sel out below is the Euro equivalent of the guaranitees issued in relabon to debt issuance by other TMC
subsidianes,

29
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2022 2021

€'000 €000
Malaysiam Ringgit 267 837 188 956
Russian Ruble 166,791 146 486
South African Rand 473,714 343 855
Thal Baht 1,675,056 1,930,591
Palish Zloty B4 459 32,383
Total 2,647 657 2642211

The nature of the guarant@es 15 hal they aré uncondilional guaraniees issued o the debl halders. I fer any
reason the issueris unable to pay as and when the debtfalls due, the Company may be required io repay the
debt on behall of the issuer. The guarantees are for commercial paper and medium -lerm notes

31. Financial risk management

311 Financial risk factors

The Company's principal activities are the lending of funds to other subsidiaries of Toyota Financial Services
Corporation (the parent company) and acling as a guarantee vehicle far third party debts of other relaked
com panies within the Toyota Motor Corporation group

The Company's role as a financing vehicle for Toyola related companies exposes itto a vanety of financal
risks that include eredit risk, liguidity risk, inlarest rate risk and foreign currency exchange rate risk, The
Company has in place a risk managemeant program that seeks bo limil the adverse effects on the financal
performanceof the Company of those risks by matching foreign currency assets and liabilties and through the
use of fimancial Instruments, including inlerest rate swaps, cross-curmency swaps and foreign currency
contracis, Io manage interestrate and foreign currency risk

In respect of the credil risk arising from the market values of derivative contracts to manage market risks,
agreaments are concluded to exchange collaleral with counterparties to miligate those creditrisks. The Board
of Management ulilises a risk management policy and receives regular reports from the business o enable
prompt identification of financial risks so thatappropriate actions may be taken. The Com pany employs wriien
policies and procedures hat specly guidelings for managng forexgn exchangs risk, Inberest rate risk, liguldiy
risk, credit risk and the use of linancial instrumaents lo manage these risks.

312 Forelgn exchange risk

The Company has ransactions with related Toyola group companies in Euro, other continental Europesn
currencies, South Afrcan Rand, Thai Baht, Malaysian Ringgit, Singapore Dollar, Japanese Yen, Pound
Sterling and US Dollars, The Company actively bomrows in 8 number of currencies o meet invesior demand
forits Issued debl The Company makes use of cross-currency swaps and forward forelgn exchange coniracs
to matkch assets and liabilities into specific currency porffolios. The net exposure results in the Company being
exposed o foreign exchange risks primanly with respect o Pound Sterling and US Daollars

The Company manages its exposure to foreign exchange risk by ensuring that its holdings of financial asses
and financial liabilities are malched wilhin each of its four funding currency portfolos, bo ensune that any net
long or short positions within each currency fall within levels that management considers acceptable,

The remalning netexposures althe reporting date were as follows:
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€'000 €000
Pound Stering 1.085 4899
LS Doliar 519 (7.448)
Thai Baht 2828 1,586
Russian Ruble 12,358 £
South African Rand 367 292
Japanese Yen a5 a8
Other 2a7 326
Total 17480 {297}

The above exposure represents the presant value of future foreign currency cash flaws discounted at markst
interest rates al the reporiing dale. The exposure derives from the net equity investiment in the four foreign
currency funding books that the Company uses to provide funding to related parbes. A delay in paymentfrom
Russia causedthe Company to have an unhadged position on Rubles for a short period of ime

£}
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The following sensitivity analysis shows the impacton equity, through both profit or loss and recognition direcly
in reserves, of a 5% appreciation and depreciation in the value of the Euro against all other currencies at the
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reparting date:
2022 2021
| Sensltivity | Sensitivity
of profit | Sensitivity of profit Sensitivity
and loss of equity Total and loss of equity Tatal
GainfLoss) | Gainl{Loss) | Gainf{Loss) GainifLess) | GainfjLess) | GainlLoss}
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
5% Eura
Strengthening [B4) (26} (BT5) 11 {25) (14}
§ % Euro
Weakening 648 28 675 (11} 25 14

Sensitivity of Equity relates to Other reserves for eguity instruments FVOCI as described innate 28
313 Interest raterisk

The Company has bolh interest-bearing assels and interest-bearing liabiibes. The Company has a policy of
maintaining assats and liabilties af floating interest rates, The Company uses swaps, in respect of finandal
assats, including inter-company lending to manage nisk. In respect of borrowing, swaps are used fo retain
flexibility in the debt capital markets. The interest rate swaps are sefiled on a bi-annual or guarterly basis with
paymentor receipt of the difference between the agreed fixed Interest rate and the floating inlerest rate
amounis an the principal,

Interest rate risk in relation lo the Company's related parly lending actwvities is managed by ensunng that any
fixed rate funding is swapped into floating rate, with reset dates typically of a three month duration. Inferest
rabe nsk in relation to the Company's bormowing activities is managed by ensuring thatany fixed rate bormowing
is swapped inio floakng rale, with resel dates typically of a three month duration. As such, movementin he
pravailing markelrabes will not have a mabenal im pact on incoma

This interestrate profile broadly matches thalof the Company'sinira-group loanassels, either carrying variable
coupons with a three manth re-pricing or, where fixed for longer penods, swapped into three month floating
rales.

The Company's interesirate risk exposure derives from the following financial contracts:

2
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Interost rate risk exposure at 31 Fixed rate Floating Mon- Total
rate interest

March 2022 Genrig

€'000 €000 €000 €'000
MNon-current assets
Loans to related companies SE16B2T 4 587,143 - 10,403,770
Equity investment - relaled
company - - 1,270 1270
Current assats
Loans to related companies 2.784 666 4 166,734 - 6,851 400
Recaivables from alfilaled
companies - - 2,838 2,838
Other receivables - financial
instruments enly - 104,269 1,052 106,021
Cash and cash equivalenis 33197 819,327 - 952,524
Current liabilities
Commercial paper - (3,758 575} - (3,758.575)
Medium term nobe (1,511,127) {1.267 638) - (2,778,768)
Bank loans (988 895) {490,820} - {1.480.7145)
Affiliated company accounts
payable . - {11.135) {11,135)
Other labilities and accrued
expenses - financial instruments
anly - {134,239) {1,518) {135 757)
Bank overdraft - i3} - i3
Men-current liabilities
Medium term note (5536484 (2402809} - (7.939.293)
Bank loans {1,008.871) {1,125 241} ; (2,224.112)
Pre-derivative position {a) {501.887) 580,847 {7.493) 80467
Mominal value derivatives (b) 568,980 (550,383) ‘ 18,5497
Metinterest beanng assetl/
{hability) position (aj+(b) 67,093 39,464 {7.493) 99,064

33
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Interest rate risk exposure at 31 Ficed rats’ - Flosting rath hm”“"; Total
March 2021 i
bearing

€000 €000 €000 €000
Non-gurrent assets
Loans to related companies 5,185 087 4 203,715 - 5,388,782
Equity investmeni—related company - - 1,248 1248
Current assels
Loans to related companies 2447 407 3754519 - 6,201,926
Receivables from affilated companies - - 2,158 2,158
Other receivables - financial
instruments anly - 106220 192 106,412
Cashand cash equivalents - 803 636 . 803,636
Current liabilities
Commercial paper - (4,367 244) g (4,367 244)
Medium term note {1,500,890) {1,831,268) - (3,332,158)
Bank loans (BT} {435,661) - (435,728)
Affiliated company accounts payable - - (8.286) (B,286)
Other liabilities and acerued RN S
- financialinstruments only - {114,533) (924) {115457)
Bank owerdrafi - - " *
Non-current liabilities
Medium term nole {4.043,296) {1.6881,871) - (5.925,167)
Bank loans {1,3:24,580) {B66 383) - {2,190,963)
Pre-denvative position (a) 763641 (528,870) (6,292} 228478
Nominal value dervatives (b} (T57.074) 760,380 54 3360
MNetl interest beanng asset/ (liability)
position (a)*{b) &.667 231,510 (8,238} 231,838
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Short-term barrawing with an anginal lerm of less than 6 m onthsis subjectto regularinfaresirate changesan
replacement, therefore, short-term funding of this nabture is classified as floating rate funding in the above

tables

314 Creditrisk

Caunier party exposure from invesiments, deposits and derivative financial invesimentsislimited to finanaal
instituions with investiment-grade creditratings with more siringent rating thresholds for exposures in excess
of & years. The amount of exposure bo any individual counter-party is subject to a limit, which is reassessed

annually

The Company is exposed to credit nsk from its acliviies as a lender and guaranior of TMC operating
companies’ third party debis in vanous geographical logations. While the Company’'s primary credit risk
exposure is default by the relaled companies to which it lends or issues guaraniees o third parties, this risk is
mitigaied by eredil support agreements with its parent and ultimate parent company, whereby they have
undertaken o the debt and guarantes halders to maintain the equity of the Company al a spealied level, The
Moody's credit raling of the parent as of 31 March 2022 is A1,

In addition, the Company’s lending and guarantee activity is o significant operating entifies as part of the
Toyota group, and therefore the Company's confinuing frading viability is ultim ately dependent upon the trading
parormance of the TMC group as a whole. Lending 15 on an un-subordinated basss, but there are instances
where loans are subordinated bo assistin meefing regulatory funding requirements of the borower.

Darivatives entered into by tha Company exclusively io manage its interest rate and currancy risk are traded
solely with recognised credit instifutions with credit ratings as detailed above. Fair value movement in the
danvative liability does not m alenally perain o credit risk.

The Company's cash and cash equivalents are held with a selection of banks from a list approved by TRSC

within specified limits.

The maximum exposure to creditrsk from financial instruments at the reporing date is as follows:

Current assets
Loans to related com panies
Cther receivables

- Collateral deposits paid and related party receivables

Derivabve financial instrumenis
Cash and cash equivalents

Hon-current assets
Loansto related com panies
Derivative financial instrumenis

Contingent llabilities
Guarantees of related party debt

2022 2021
€000 €000
6951400 6,201 926
108,858 108,570
156,348 B4 B57
952524 903636
10,403,770 9,388,782
288,735 222774
2547 BST 2642 271

Agreements to exchange collateral in cash have been concluded with counterparties to mitigate the credit risk
arising from the value of denvative financial instruments shown abowve, At 31 March 2022, the value of cash
collateral received, shown as Collateral deposits recelved in note 25 within Other labilites and acciued

expenseswas € 134,199,000 (2021:€ 114,500,000),

Details of the Conltingentliabilibes are shawn innote 30

The maximum single exposure lrom dervative assets althe reporting dale 16 a single counterparty is
€ 61,554,000 (2021. € 33,170,000} and the 3 largestcounterparty posiions represent € 52 426 000
(2021:€ 75,029.000). Thesa counterparties exposures are collateralised.
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35 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet paymentobligations associated with its finandal
liabilities when they fall due.

The Company regulasly forecasts shortand medium-temn funding requirements incorperating information from
other related companies and ensures thal there is an appropriate level of liquid resources to cover any
unforeseen cash requirements.

The Company actively maintans a mixture of long -term and short-erm debtmatuntes, logetherwith long-tem
commitied facilibes and liqued Invesimenis that are designed 1o ensure the Company has sufficient avaitable
funds for operations. The Com pany maintains commited creditlines wilth a syndicate of commercial banks o
mitigate the liguidity isk. In addition, the Company has entered into a credit support agreement and &
supplemaental credil supportagreementwith its parent com pany in which it will make sufficient funds availabie
to the Company so that the Company will be able to service the obligations arising out of its capital market
bomrowing and guaraniee obligations respectively.

The credil support agreementand the supplemental credit support agreement provide for termination by either
party upon 30 days' written nofice 1o the other party. Such terminations will nottake effect until or unless all
relevant securibes have been repaid or each relevant ratbing agency has confirmed to the parentcompany or
the Company that the debt ratings of all relevantsecurities will be unaffected by such tfermination

The fallowing table details the expected matunty of non-derivative financial liabilities. The analysis is based on
gross contractual iundiscounted ) cash flows payable. Foreign cumency cash flows incuded in the table below
have been translated using market rates. Where future interest paymenis are variable, the cash flows are
based on the infterest rate index at the reporting date.

Debt cash flows at 31 March e ";ﬂi“"': O nhr:;:; o h::'m Zacm ';z::
#a2 menths years
€'000 €000 €000 €000
Bank loans 152,945 1,370,533 1921315 401,371
Commaercial paper 3,357,780 403,167 . -
EMTM 513 7a1 2,358,785 7,597 205 BE85,277
Collateral deposits received 134 169 E i i
Total 4,158,705 4,132,485 9.518,520 1,266,648
g;;: cash flows at 31 March i :_Im: s ::m':; Hiin h:':ﬂfi"; i “;z::
months years
€000 €000 €000 €000
Bank loans 171,903 268,349 2198745 -
Commerncial paper 2817036 1,550,511 - -
EMTM 810,012 2577.5T1 5,551.954 511,719
Collateral deposits received 114,500 - . -
Total 3,913,451 4,396,431 7,750,699 511,719

The fallowing table details the expected matunty of denvative financial instruments. The analysis is based on
the gross confractsal (undiscounted) cash flows. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the
amountdisclosed has been determingd by referance o current market indices at the reporting date.
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Due within 3 Due Due Due after 5
Met cashflows at 31 March months betweond between1 years
2022 and 12 and § years

months
€000 €000 £'900 €'000

Metl satliled:
Interest derivatives
payable/ireceivabla) (3.887) (28,757} 61,236 14,578
Gross settled:
Currency denvatives -
receivable (1,844 272} {2.905,302) 16,.206,340) (810,850}
Currency denvalives - payable 1,814 505 2 964,328 6,178 558 781,162
Total derivative cash flows (33.654) 32,269 31,454 {15,120)
Total 4,125,051 4,164, 754 9,549 974 1,251,528

Net cash flows at 31 March Due within 3 Due between Due batwesn Dug after s

2024 months dand 12 1and & years
menths years

€'000 €000 €000 €000
Net setiled:
Interest derivatives
payable/{recelvable) (228) [17.382) (29,655} {443)
Gross seftled:
Currency derivatives - receivable 2 175 826) {Z033673) (6062 166) {240,434)
Currency derivatives - payable 2119345 2016422 6,095,625 214,49
Total derivative cash flows {56,709) (34,633) 3804 (26,386)
Total 3,856,742 4,361,798 7,754,503 485,333

The Company has extended loan facilities to relaled parties and to the extent that these loan facilites are
undrawn at the reporting date this represents a fubure lending commitment.

Potential cash outllows from undrawn loan facilties at the reporiing dale are shown in the table below al the
eariiest possible draw down date, The cash flow effect of probable future related party borrowing requirements
is monitared through regular cash fow lerecasts provided 1o the Company by the relaled panlies.

Due within 3 Due Due Due after 5

Undrawn commitments at 31 maonths betweend between 1 years
March 2022 and 12 and 5 years

months

€000 €000 €000 €000

Undrawn loan commitments 2 000,000 109,075 - -

Total 2,000,000 109,076 - -

EY)
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Due within 3 Due Due Due after 5
Undrawn commitments at 31 months between 4 betweon1 years
March 2021 and 12 and 5 years
menths
£'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Undrawn loan commitments 5 254 000 R N -
Total 5.254,000 x . -

316 Price risk

The Coempany is net significanlly exposed o equity price nisk or commodity price risk
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317 Offsetting financial assets and financial lkabilitles

The fallowing financial instruments are subject to enforceable master netting agreements:

Gross Gross. Net collateral Met assets [
amounts of amounts of exchanged {liabilities)
recognised recognised

financial financial
As at 31 March 2022 assets liabilities.

€000 €000 €000 €000

Derivative financial
instruments
Collateralised 445,081 (426,484) {20,289) {10,702}
Derivative financial
instruments
Non-collaleralised Fs s
Total 445,081 (426,484) (29,299) {10,702)

Gross Gross Met collateral Net assets |
amounts of amounts of exchanged (Hiabilities)
recognised recognised

financial financial
As at 31 March 2021 assels liabilities

€000 €000 €000 €000

Derivative financial
instruments
Collateralised 287 431 (284 070) (8,300 {4.939)
Derivative financial
Instruments
Mon-collateralized N - = =
Total 287,431 (284,070) {8,300) {4,939)

Financal instruments are setled on a gross basis, however each party 1o a masier neting agreemaeani wil
have the option o saflle all such amounts.on a net basisin the event of default of the other party. All finanoal

instruments on the Statement of financial posiion are shawn on a gross basis.

32. Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is defined as the price thal would be received when selling an assel or paid when transfedring a
liabilityin an ordedy fransacion between market paricipants at the measurement dale.

321 Financial assets and liabilities at fair value in the statement of financial position

The table balow analyses financial instrumants carriad atfair value, by valuation method. The differentiovels
have been defined as follows:;

Level 1 - Quoled prices (unadjusted)in achve markets for identical assels and liabilites;

Lewvel 2 — Inputs other than quoled pricas included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
gither directly (thatis, as prices) or indirectly (that is derived from prices);

Levvirl 3 = Inputs Tor the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, uncbservable
inputs}

39
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Level 2 rading and hedging denvatives comprse forward exchange contracts and inlerestrale swaps. These
forward foreign exchange contracts have been fairvalued using forward exchange rales that are quoted in an
active markel Interest rate swaps are fairvalued using forward interest rates from observable yi eld curves.

Management will continually assess whether its understanding of the valuation method hierarchy remans
accurate for each financial instrument and if a change is deemed to occur it will disclose the date of the event
and the change in circumstances in addition to the reporting period itis applicable to.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Level Level Level Level Level Level
1 2 3 Total 1 2 3 Total

€000 | €000 €000 | €000 | €000 | €000 | €000 €000

Financial assets
Equity instruments -

related company . « 1,270 1.270 . « 1248 1,248
Dervatve financial
instruments - 445081 - 445081 - 28TAN - 287431

Financial liabilities

Dedivative financial
instruments - 426484 - 426484 - 284070 - 284070

There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3. The carrying value for all other financial assets
and habiliies not presentad in the pravious graph is a reasanable approxmation af Fair Value in accardance
with disclosure requiremenis as stated withinIFRS 7.
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322 Financlal assets and llabilitles not measured at fair value in the statement of financial position

The fallowing tables compare the carrying value and fair value of those financialassets and liabilities not presented
on fhe statementof financial position atfair value.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Level 2 Level 2
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
€'000 €000 €000 €000

Financial assets
Loans to related parties 17,352,459 17,440,678 15,589,110 15,809,787
Guaraniee {ea recelvable g 154 8,154 7471 7471
Financial liabilities
Bank loans 3713827 3705799 2626 691 2647 322
Commercial papear 3758575 3,758,194 4 36T 244 4 366 582
Eurc medium term notes 10,718,059 10,645 214 8257 325 9404 732
Related party guarantee 9,154 9,154 74T 74T

Financial assels

The fair value calculation forloans fo related parties is based on discounting expected future cash flows using an
estimated discount rate that reflects the expected fulure interest rates, denved from quoted market rates at the
reparting date. Early setlements, credit losses and credit spread assumplions are reviewed periadically, but
currently are not relevantto this class of assels

Financial liabilities

The fair value of borrowings is based on eurrent markel pricas whaere availabla, Fair value of EMTN is based on
the discounted cash flow model that incorporates observable inputs including inferest rate yield curves and the
appropnate discountrate forthe currency and tencr of the cash flow, Where active market prices are not available,
the fair value of fixed interest bamowings is based on future cash flows discounted al the current rate for similar
debts or assets with the same remaining maturities.

33. Events occurring after the reporting date

Since March 2022 regulations by Russian authorities on off-shore payments from Russia has been introduced and
tightenad several imes. In July 2022 AOQ Tayota Bank, asbarrower from the Company, was restrictad by Russian
authorities in making a paymentof loan imerest to the Company due to these regulations. The Company isin the
process of Investigating the impact of, and countermeasure to this situation. The delay in inlerest payments is
strictly caused by regulatory reasons and does not reflectin any way the financial position of AQ Toyola Bank at
this moment. There are no other material events after the reporting date fo disclose

41
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Beard of Management

The board of management has the power to amend the financial statements after issue, if applicable

George Juganar
Akihiko Sekiguchi
Toshiaki Kawai

Kazuo Noda
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Other Information
Retained Earnings
In accordance with Article 21 of the Articies of Association, retained earmings are at the disposal of the shareholder

in the general meating. Subject to the Company being in a profitable positen, the Board of Management may
decide o pay a dividend subject to the approval of the shareholder in the ganeral meating.

Independent Auditer's Report

The independent auditor's repor is sel oul on page 43,
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)
116 117 118
2019 2020 2021 2022
— | 29,866,547 27,214,594 | 31,379,507
— 2,792,942 2,932,354 3,990,532
— 2,036,140 2,245,261 2,850,110
— 1,555,009 3,217,806 3,954,350
19,907,100 | 20,618,888 23,404,547 26,245,969
53,416,405 | 53,972,363 62,267,140 67,688,771
() 1,405.65 1,490.80 1,674.18 1,904.88
() — 145.49 160.65 205.23
() — 144.02 158.93 205.23
() 37.3 38.2 37.6 38.8
() — 10.0 10.2 11.5
() — 8.9 10.7 10.8
— 2,398,496 2,727,162 3,722,615
— 2,124,650 4,684,175 577,496
— 362,805 2,739,174 2,466,516
3,602,805 4,098,450 5,100,857 6,113,655
) 371,193 361,907 366,283 372,817
[86,708]| [86,596] [80,009]| [87,120]|
2021 10 116
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114 115 116
2018 2019 2020
29,379,510 | 30,225,681 | 29,929,992
2,620,429 2,285,465 2,554,607
2,493,983 1,882,873 2,076,183
2,393,256 1,936,602 1,866,642
)| 19,922,076 | 20,565,210 | 21,241,851
)| 50,308,249 | 51,936,949 [ 52,680,436
1,287.73 1,366.18 1,450.43
168.40 130.11 147.12
166.56 129.02 145.90
37.2 37.3 38.1
13.7 9.8 10.4
8.1 10.0 8.8
4,223,128 3,766,597 3,590,643
3,660,092 2,697,241 3,150,861
449,135 540,839 397,138
3,219,639 3,706,515 4,412,190
369,124 370,870 359,542
[ 84,731] [ 87,129] [ 86,219]|
116
2021 10 114
115 114
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)
114 115 116 117 118
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
12,201,444 | 12,634,439 | 12,729,731 | 11,761,405 | 12,607,858
2,238,140 | 2,323,122 | 1,735,365 | 1,886,601 | 2,171,530
1,859,313 | 1,806,825 | 1,424,062 | 1,638,057 | 1,693,947
635,402 635,402 635,402 635,402 635,402
3,262,907 | 3,262,907 | 3,262,097 | 3,262,997 | 16,314,987
47,100 47,100 47,100 47,100
12,040,948 | 12,450,275 | 12,500,801 | 13,804,021 | 14,607,272
17,200,436 | 17,716,994 | 17,809,246 | 21,198,281 | 20,991,040
() 794.54 845.11 875.44 959.55 1,060.16
220 220 220 240 148
( , ) ( 100) ¢ 100) ( 100) ( 105) ( 120)
158 211 264 264
( N ) ( 79.0) (105.5) (132.0) (132.0) « )
() 125.66 131.42 100.85 116.56 121.98
() 124.17 129.98 100.05 115.31 121.97
() 70.0 70.3 70.7 65.5 69.6
() 15.9 15.5 11.4 12.4 11.9
() 10.9 9.9 12.9 14.8 18.2
() 35.0 33.5 43.6 41.2 42.6
O 74,890 74,515 74,132 71,373 70,710
] [ 10.905] [ 11.122] [ 10,795]] [ 9,565]| [ 9,017]|
) 116.6 114.6 118.5 157.5 203.1
() (115.9) (110.0) (99.6) (141.5) (144.3)
TOPIX)
2,475
() 7,806 7,686 8,026 8,712 (153
1,622
() 5,670 6,045 5,771 6,163 120
29 2020 31 118

118
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2021 10 114
118 120 28
148
114 115 116 117 118
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
220 220 220 240 260
) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 105) ( 120)
2021 2021
118
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
1,978,884 2,141,906 2,200,557 2,174,001 2,350,615
280,769 313,306 281,329 474,498 646,813
509,930 222,308 223,836 350,229 478,661
439,270 267,214 103,547 497,070 801,434
2,733,310 2,893,403 3,005,729 3,484,968 4,294,851
22,636,927 | 23,660,621 | 24,574,145 | 27,482,433 | 30,751,097
( ) | 1,721,667.31 | 1,816,366.85 | 1,884,482.41 | 2,184,614.29 | 2,689,761.92
() 324,692.91 | 141,552.90 | 142,525.61 | 223,004.92 |  304,782.79
() = = - - =
() 11.9 12.1 12.0 12.5 13.7
() 20.5 8.0 7.7 11.0 12.5
() — — — — —
) 10,364 10,634 11,469 12,226 12,986
(1,450) (1,540) (1,542) (1,386) (1,374)
)
29 2020 31 2022

2022
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58,411 75,532 67,138 67,148 116,713
47,297 63,027 52,635 47,481 91,361
42,983 57,665 43,866 41,009 82,651
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525
1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
624,560 580,459 621,868 665,834 747,288
633,111 586,472 629,775 674,448 757,115
397,682.51 | 369,601.93 | 395,968.40 | 423,963.15 |  475,828.45
. 63,674.00 . B 7,640
(63,674.00) )
27,369.48 36,717.92 27,931.86 26,112.55 52,627.34
98.6 99.0 98.7 98.7 98.7
7.1 9.6 7.3 6.4 11.7
— 173.4 — — 14.5
73 85 99 230 120
(16) (14) 17 (23) (20)

(

)

148/237




EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn

( ) ( ) 100

2000

1982 ( )

1986 C )

1987 ( ) ( )
1988 ( )

(UK) (UK)

1990 ( )
1993 « )
2000

2004 « )
2005 « )

2018 ( )
2019 « )

149/237



EDINETOOOO
OO0000000O0oooooo0o0000o0ndnognd(E20989)

ooooood
80
(@) (
)
42
(R £ R 1)
F 2 & B EhdER St
(100% F-£x4tk)
Fa &y iy et — A BRAS
M il
Fa# #—F— 2 ¥y FiIR
a3 2Lie b hHR)
(= el g - fFEY U—ired 2472 FiEE
[E+/ 1 Fa# PrLdrd A=A VT ERD
Faf +—%— FrAtea Frea00
[EH
S — A O Al — A O R

Lk

150/237



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

oOoOooodn

)
)
635,401 100
)
16,500 100
Plano, ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Henderson, ) 700 100
Nevada, U.S.A. (100)
Markham, ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
Cologne, Germany 30,000 100
Amsterdam, )
( Netherlands 908 100
Epsom, Surrey, ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 137,350
) 100
Roma, Italy 122,863 (100)
St Leonards, )
New Sou?h Wales, 120,000 100
Australia
Bangkok, Thailand %gg)
18,100 )
4,100,000 100
Makati, Philippines 60
8,700,000
67
)
) (
)
( )
10
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)
2,401
3,537
1,256
5,672
C ) 120
12,986 (1,374)
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@)
2022 31
) ) ) C )
120(20) 41.7 5.5 9,722
) )
( ) )
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1,167
896 431
« )
2,382
296 196
« )
5,568
1,015
« )
835
258 97
( )
4,719
422
30 7,510
4,568 24 3,305
26 4,562
7,423 12 4,054
2,948

6,103
4,786
29

913

170

866

43

685

8,117

7,163
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( ) )
1,821,849 1.4
16,213,841 11.6
1,451,135 1.8
7,477,584 18.3
26,964,411 11.8
)
( ) )
238,289 7.7
1,556,834 5.9
83,591 5.5
471,900 17.0
2,350,615 8.1
)
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202 31
( )
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(Plano 13,356 | 22,001 | 1,724 37,083 §é3§§
Texas, U.S.A.)

)
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( 2022 2023 31 )
2,085,165
29,154
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4,680,000
4,680,000
)
1,570,500
1,570,500 _ _
)
(©)
©)
) ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2004 15 ) 70,000 | 1,570,500 3,500 78,525 3,500 78,525
1,500,500 70,000 70,000
100,000

50,000
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()
) — ! — — — ! —
() —11,570,500 — — — 11,570,500 —
( ) —_ 100.00 —_ —_ — 100.00 —_
(6)
(2022 31 )
) (
) O
1,570,500 100.00
— 1,570,500 100.00
@
(2022 31 )
() ()
( _ — _
( — J— J—
( — — —
( 1,570,500 1,570,500 —
1,570,500 — —
- 1,570,500 —
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(€))
( )
(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )

987,541 943,868

17,658,090 , 19,792,889

1,868,626 2,160,538

907,274 910,666

749,755 862,165

297,587 339,531

21,873,701 24,330,597

C ) , 4,590,637 , 5,010,983
33,906 33,315

4,624,543 5,044,298

54,671 67,476

612,942 931,215

316,575 377,509

929,517 1,308,725

5,608,732 6,420,499

27,482,433 30,751,097
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(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
870,500 650,387
) 2,626,264 2,774,399
3,407,752 3,724,548
3,159,986 3,240,317
52,114 58,717
1,546,477 1,957,116
11,663,095 12,405,487
7,287,309 8,163,623
. 4,424,495 5,298,949
421,390 319,338
15,835 14,895
19,977 18,236
165,361 235,715
12,334,370 14,050,757
23,997,465 26,456,245
78,525 78,525
159,900 159,900
3,204,079 3,681,563
3,442,505 3,919,988
2,141 10,588
60 583
13,649 314,286
11,568 304,282
54,031 70,580
3,484,968 4,294,851
27,482,433 30,751,097
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(2020 2021

2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
2,174,001 2,350,615
1,225,949 1,227,191
948,052 1,123,423
502,615 513,001
445,436 610,332
673 430
3,958 7,884
23,290 26,010
2,130 3,213
30,053 37,538
634 381
357 675
991 1,057
474,498 646,813
— 5,831
— 5,831
— 415
— 415
474,498 652,230
402,704 298,074
278,586 127,869
124,118 170,204
350,379 482,025
150 3,364
350,229 478,661
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(2020 ( 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
350,379 482,025
2,206 12,729
900 411
144,460 325,435
924 6,291
146,690 319,408
497,070 801,434
495,101 794,511
1,968 6,922
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2020 2021 31
( )
78,525 159,900 2,877,595 3,116,020
23,744 23,744
78,525 159,900 2,853,850 3,092,275
350,229 350,229
— — 350,229 350,229
78,525 159,900 3,204,079 3,442,505
65 1,221 157,597 156,440 46,150 3,005,729
23,744
65 1,221 157,597 156,440 46,150 2,981,985
350,229
2,206 1,282 143,948 144,872 7,881 152,753
2,206 1,282 143,948 144,872 7,881 502,982
2,141 60 13,649 11,568 54,031 3,484,968
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( )
78,525 159,900 3,204,079 3,442,505
1,177 1,177
78,525 159,900 3,202,902 3,441,327
478,661 478,661
_ — 478,661 478,661
78,525 159,900 3,681,563 3,919,988
2,141 60 13,649 11,568 54,031 3,484,968
1,177
2,141 60 13,649 11,568 54,031 3,483,790
478,661
12,729 644 327,935 315,850 16,549 332,399
12,729 644 327,935 315,850 16,549 811,061
10,588 583 314,286 304,282 70,580 4,294,851

178/237




~

(

(

(

(
80
) TFS
C )
C )«
)
)
31
12 31
)
(
)
)

179/237

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

OooooOodd
(  NAF
« ) « )
C )« )
TCCI
TCCI
)



(

(

(

(

(

)

)

)

)

( LIBOR

17

)

)

LIBOR

180/237

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn

( 40 2022



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

ooooooo
)
( )
331,597 291,563
( )
69,471 57,308

181/237



44-

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

OooooOodd
29 2020 31
84
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1,235,132 1,362,831
(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
72,612 82,531
19,856 25,876
1,467 1,940
1,467 1,940

(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
4,131,896 4,158,242
44,632 64,756
12,564 13,990
4,189,093 4,236,989

(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
4,297,338 4,708,591

(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
3,291,112 3,590,063
735,382 1,456,539

(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
19,362 17,032
1,369,733 1,594,782
1,860,607 2,304,374
7,279 8,148
27,716 24,026
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2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
100,150 119,005
108,348 90,639

2020 ( 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
( )5,218 ( )32,690

2020 ( 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
5,401 16,661
2,106 153
3,295 16,815
1,088 4,085
2,206 12,729
398 208
817 696
1,216 487
315 76
900 411
144,460 325,435
924 6,291
146,690 319,408
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714,466 775,579
519,702 576,838
109,296 115,527
1,124,873 1,236,891
@
(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
243,077 324,644
225,722 281,448
176,064 225,781
103,587 116,156
49,095 43,467
3,494 4,823
(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
283,418 311,229
190,362 202,245
134,699 143,827
73,218 82,359
24,597 25,949
8,169 9,967
( )
(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
784,641 856,017
830,386 908,695
1,615,028 1,764,712
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( )
o 17,658,090
« ) 258,456
17,399,634 18,010,408 610,774
@)
1,348,923
C )
« ) 33,106
1,315,817 1,390,842 75,025
©) 1,455,698 1,476,736 21,037
20,171,150 20,877,987 706,837
() « ) 10,695,062 10,913,002 217,940
(@) « ) 7,050,759 7,071,284 20,525
17,745,821 17,984,287 238,465
C )
82,685 91,727 9,042
674 1,917 1,243
82,011 89,809 7,798
C D
« )
« )
C D
C D
C D )
C (€)
64,517
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( )
(€D 19,792,889
« ) 296,118
19,496,771 19,829,058 332,287
@
1,583,699
«C )
« ) 35,478
1,548,220 1,623,963 75,742
®3) 1,771,265 1,808,678 37,412
22,816,257 23,261,700 445,442
() « ) 11,888,172 11,723,650 164,522
O « ) 8,073,349 8,010,370 62,978
19,961,521 19,734,020 227,500
C )
83,480 95,055 11,575
302 305 2
83,177 94,750 11,572
«C )
C )
C )
« )
«C )
C ) )
C ) ©)
70,615
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987,541 — —
6,417,314 9,934,252 1,058,572
457,949 867,014 10,258
10,170 20,310 15,160
2,712 6,082 25,174
502,659 — 399
515,541 26,393 40,735
8,378,347 10,827,660 1,109,566

(2022 31 )

( )
943,868 — —
6,648,156 11,502,082 1,335,901
555,470 999,379 13,042
40,068 117,167 44,634
2,894 27,834 209,492
760,653 — 446
803,617 145,002 254,574
8,951,112 12,646,465 1,603,518
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3,409,365 6,315,756 993,547
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3,240,317 — —
3,726,600 7,096,529 1,090,908
2,774,399 5,046,248 252,700
10,391,705 12,142,778 1,343,609
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187,758 5,700 3,542 197,001
— 228,177 1,673 229,851
1,175,163 139,526 — 1,314,689
— 66,855 — 66,855
— 258,429 — 258,429
1,430,057 698,689 5,216 2,133,963
— 277,081 — 277,081
— 142,956 — 142,956
— 420,038 — 420,038
@
(2022 31 )
— — 19,829,058 19,829,058
— — 1,623,963 1,623,963
_ 426 — 426
— 426 21,453,022 21,453,448
— 11,723,650 — 11,723,650
— 4,180,113 3,830,257 8,010,370
— 423 — 423
— 15,904,186 3,830,257 19,734,443
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19,347 18,869 477
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26,442 27,136 694
3,104 3,120 16
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1,009,620 1,011,157 1,536
1,437,145 1,416,887 20,257
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3,087 2,958 129
334 330 4
127,039 105,207 21,831
133,637 110,614 23,022
4,476 5,498 1,022
193,913 198,356 4,442
229,516 244,053 14,536
1,187,650 1,209,467 21,817
1,615,557 1,657,376 41,818
1,749,194 1,767,990 18,796
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(
(2021 31 )
@
)
17,957 — 18 18
494,600 — 3,116 3,116
665,021 441,546 14,406 14,406
481,019 394,598 41,720 41,720
423,765 271,969 18,232 18,232
415,305 271,856 13,208 13,208
307,302 223,623 5,991 5,991
2,031,426 1,342,121 7,164 7,164
4,836,398 2,945,717 77,441 77,441
@
)
4,988,360 3,938,590 89,257 89,257
10,431,936 6,608,192 106,962 106,962
569,088 349,249 3,418 3,418
15,989,385 10,896,032 14,286 14,286
@
)
44,000 44,000 674
143,500 143,500 1,243
187,500 187,500 1,917
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13,542 — 41 41
628,199 — 11,323 11,323
636,062 370,210 61,868 61,868
595,390 473,889 77,833 77,833
376,244 244,568 11,382 11,382
369,368 281,795 17,924 17,924
312,246 129,748 8,517 8,517
2,037,562 1,338,892 38,369 38,369
4,968,616 2,839,105 210,225 210,225

@
)
5,025,295 4,164,073 116,345 116,345
10,467,033 7,602,414 228,304 228,304
681,211 383,734 3,211 3,211
16,173,541 12,150,222 115,170 115,170

@
)
44,000 44,000 302
185,500 178,000 2
229,500 222,000 305
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(
2,286
1,311
€Y
(2021 31 (2022 31 )
552,215 627,018
522,921 555,376
29,294 71,641
@
29.0 (2020 2021 31 )
29.2 (2021 2022 31 )
©)
(€D
€Y
( 2020 ( 2021
2021 31 2022 31 )
32,359 40,791
1,564 1,637
490 499
992 1,235
3,064 2,392
4,306 2,074
40,791 41,375
@
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(©)
(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )

29,347 29,260

20,814 23,138

8,532 6,121

11,444 12,115

19,977 18,236

19,977 18,236

19,977 18,236
O]

(2020 ( 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )

1,564 1,637

2,289 1,607

166 116

4,021 86
®
®

(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
0.1 3.3 0.1 4.1

201/237



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
74,886 79,133
11,663 15,391
65,227 81,727
151,777 176,253
10,882 12,387
140,895 163,865
427,296 361,528
55,194 40,753
482,491 402,282
341,596 238,416
) )
( ) ( )
- 79,794 - 80,921
— 421,390 — 319,338
(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
30.6 30.6
7.6 7.6
3.2 3.1
26.2 26.1
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( )
)
(2020 2021 31 )
( )
) )
221,237 | 1,470,158 | 79,232 | 1,770,629 | 403,371 | 2,174,001 — | 2,174,001
1,471 8,270 0 9,741 | 15,424 25,166 | 25,166 —
222,709 | 1,478,429 | 79,232 | 1,780,371 | 418,796 | 2,199,167 | 25,166 | 2,174,001
10,015 | 334,606 | 16,071 | 360,693 | 91,283 | 451,976 | 6,540 | 445,436
1,847,202 (14,523,785 | 1,425,417 [17,796,406 | 6,320,948 |24,117,354 — 24,117,354
3,079 | 265,260 | 24,840 | 293,180 | 127,039 | 420,219 | 13,988 | 406,231
8,236 | 647,113 1,023 | 656,373 | 74,016 [ 730,390 40 | 730,430
13,824 48,619 | 27,264 89,707 | 18,641 | 108,348 — | 108,348
@ 6,540
@ 13,988
10,730 445,258 86,734
358,023
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( )
) )
238,289 | 1,556,834 83,591 | 1,878,714 | 471,900 | 2,350,615 — | 2,350,615
8,304 8,042 — 16,347 21,198 37,546 | 37,546 —
246,593 | 1,564,876 83,591 | 1,895,062 | 493,099 | 2,388,162 | 37,546 | 2,350,615
29,649 436,176 25,837 491,663 | 133,547 625,211 | 14,878 610,332
1,821,849 16,213,841 | 1,451,135 (19,486,827 | 7,477,584 (26,964,411 — |26,964,411
16,496 190,921 22,333 229,752 | 130,430 360,183 | 15,294 344,888
11,842 666,019 1,240 679,101 95,755 774,856 44 774,901
13,297 30,697 28,179 72,175 18,464 90,639 — 90,639
)
€Y 14,878
) 15,294
27,813 511,323 90,200
408,262
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(2020 2021 31 )
2
(€))
( )
221,237 1,400,989 551,773 2,174,001
)
@
( )
32,226 4,122,573 469,743 4,624,543
10
( 2021 2022 31 )
1)
@
( )
238,289 1,480,614 631,711 2,350,615
)
@
( )
57,176 4,354,462 632,658 5,044,298
10
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(2020 2021 31 )
«C ) «C «C
()
18,100 () 298,612 — —
( 2021 2022 31 )
)

207/237



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn

2020 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
2,184,614 29 2,689,761 92
223,004 92 304,782 79
)
2020 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
350,229 478,661
( — —
350,229 478,661
() 1,570,500 1,570,500
(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
) 3,484,968 4,294,851
54,031 70,580
3,430,936 4,224,271
) 1,570,500 1,570,500
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( ) ( ) (@)
2015 567,000 572,001 | 0.00 2021
() (126,000)
2021 0.32 2028
2016 922,487 1,062,330 [ 0.68 |( ) 2021
() (249,848)
(@D) 2022 [ 242 [ 299 39.68 2028
()
70,900 61,760
4,000 12,000
4,990 4,991
900 1,200
23,050 23,250
13,000 15,000
300 1,900
3,000 3,000
1
5,000
300
1
2007 9,205,574 10,253,840 [ 0.10 2021
(3,348,699)
) 2022 [ 54,928 [ 56,307 29.48 2048
()
) 9,946 8,890
1,490 1,339
2,331 2,475
2,567 1,876
13,330 13,815
5,354 5,125
855 1,250
40 20
300 300
1,500 1,500
1
85
3,250
1
11,888,172
— — 10,695,062 (724 548) — — —
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3,726,600

2,668,273

2,185,394

1,075,052

1,167,809
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( ) ( ) )
870,500 650,387 2.04 —
2,626,264 2,774,399 1.66 —
1,369,699 1,588,663 1.00 —
) 4,424,495 5,298,949 1.40 [ 2023 2038
1,812,539 2,258,676 1.04 [ 2023 2026
) 3,159,986 3,240,317 0.38 —
)
( )
2,328,525 1,363,352 1,040,912 313,458
1,169,580 565,530 523,565 —
100
@
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@
( )
(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
15,227 13,549
8,202 9,024
67,740 105,450
1,797 3,618
92,967 131,642
257 306
462 34
19,847 17,814
254,385 270,526
153,185 180,964
151,080 151,080
2,262 4,745
580,760 625,131
581,480 625,472
674,448 757,115

212/237



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

OooooOodd
( )
(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )

4,482 4,866
3,406 4,208
7,889 9,075
724 751
8,613 9,826
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
507,730 590,382
507,730 590,382
664,780 747,432
1,053 143
1,053 143
665,834 747,288
674,448 757,115
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( 2020 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
51,275 99,645
15,872 17,067
67,148 116,713
9,033 9,701
9,033 9,701
58,115 107,012
11,674 17,372
46,441 89,639
— 450
249 395
141 171
532 432
126 273
1,050 1,722
10 0
10 0
47,481 91,361
4,234 3,869
— 415
4,234 4,285
43,246 87,076
3,574 6,428
1,337 2,003
2,236 4,424
41,009 82,651
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( 2020 2021 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 466,721 623,771 1,902 621,868
41,009 41,009 41,009
) 2,955 2,955
— — 41,009 41,009 2,955 43,965
78,525 78,525 507,730 664,780 1,053 665,834
( 2021 2022 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 507,730 664,780 1,053 665,834
82,651 82,651 82,651
) 1,196 1,196
— — 82,651 82,651 1,196 81,454
78,525 78,525 590,382 747,432 143 747,288
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39 2020 31
28 2018 16 44
42 2021 12
( )
30 2019
19 10 2019
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(2020 ( 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
6,270 12,653
1,999 1,519
360 303
130 168
(2020 ( 2021
2021 31 ) 2022 31 )
_ 6,164
141 171
— 252
100 20
100 10
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)
(2021 31 )
( )
(1) — _ —
D) 1,580 39,590 38,010
1,580 39,590 38,010
)
( )
2021 31
220,128
32,675
252,804
(2022 31 )
( )
(1) — _ _
[0) 1,580 59,483 57,902
1,580 59,483 57,902
()
( )
2022 31
236,270
32,675
268,945
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(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )

2,504 3,688

920 2,274

971 1,542

216 344

147 256

212 222

164 164

110 92

— 63

56 43

43 33

5,348 8,726

2,890 4,202

2,457 4,524

45 45

464 —

510 45

1,947 4,478

(2021 31 ) (2022 31 )
30.6 30.6
33.9 32.9
5.5 5.8
3.0 1.5
0.0 0.1
5.2 5.1
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) ( )
231,900 8,116
Uber Technologies, Inc. 1,025,174 4,476
7,280,000 2,933
SYNQA 263,066 1,603
5,571,984 683
14,372,124 17,814
C Y|l Yl Hlc D C | ¢y
( )
— — — 461 154 36 306
— — — 86 51 7 34

&)

®
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Independent auditor's report

To: the shareholder and board of management of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) B.V.

Report on the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2022 included in the annual report

Our opinion
We have audited the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands)
BYV., based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Toyota Motor
Finance (Netherlands) BV. as at 31 March 2022, and of its result and its cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022 in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part
9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:
The statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022
The following statements for the year ended 31 March 2022: the statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows
The notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We are independent of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV. (the company) in accordance the Wet toezicht
accountantsorganisaties (Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants
bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code of Ethics for Professional

Accountants, a regulation with respect to independence) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands.
Furthermore we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA, Dutch Code of
Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information in support of our opinion

We designed our audit procedures in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon. The following information in support of our opinion and any findings were addressed in this context, and
we do not provide a separate opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Our understanding of the business

The main activity of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) B.V. is to operate as a financing company of the Toyota Motor
Corporation (Toyota) group, raising funds from third party lenders through bond issuance, loans and commercial paper
and subsequently on-lending such funds to Toyota Group companies (‘related companies’). The main income of Toyota
Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV. is the interest income on loans to related parties. We paid specific attention in our audit
to a number of areas driven by the operations of the company and our risk assessment.
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We start by determining materiality and identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error in order to design audit procedures responsive to those risks and to obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Materiality
Materiality €94 million (31 March 2021: €84 million)
Benchmark applied 0.5% (rounded) of total assets (total current assets and non-current assets) as at
31 March 2022
Explanation We determined materiality based on our understanding of the company’s business

and our perception of the financial information needs of users of the financial
statements. We considered that total assets reflect the source of income and
repayments to the holders of the bonds issued by the company and other lenders.
We determined materiality consistent with prior financial year.

We have also taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material for the
users of the financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the board of management that misstatements in excess of €5 million, which are identified during the
audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be reported on qualitative
grounds.

Teaming and use of specialists

We ensured that the audit team included the appropriate skills and competences which are needed for the audit of a
listed finance company. We involved specialists in the areas of transfer pricing, income tax, the fair valuation of financial
derivatives and sanctions.

Our focus on fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations

Our responsibility

Although we are not responsible for preventing fraud or non-compliance and we cannot be expected to detect non-
compliance with all laws and regulations, it is our responsibility to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial
statements, taken as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.

Our audit response related to fraud risks

We identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements due to fraud. During our audit we
obtained an understanding of the company and its environment and the components of the system of internal control,
including the risk assessment process and the board of management’s process for responding to the risks of fraud and
monitoring the system of internal control as well as the outcomes. We refer to the Risk management section of the board
of management report for the board's risk assessment whereby the board of management considered the potential for
fraud.

We evaluated the design and relevant aspects of the system of internal control and in particular the fraud risk
assessment. We evaluated the design and the implementation of internal controls designed to mitigate fraud risks.

As part of our process of identifying fraud risks, we evaluated fraud risk factors with respect to financial reporting fraud

and misappropriation of assets . We evaluated whether these factors indicate that a risk of material misstatement due to
fraud is present.
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We incorporated elements of unpredictability in our audit. We also considered the outcome of our other audit procedures

and evaluated whether any findings were indicative of fraud or non-compliance.

As in all of our audits, we addressed the risks related to management override of controls. We have used data analysis to
identify and address high-risk journal entries. We evaluated whether transactions with related parties were accounted for
at-arm’s-length and in accordance with transfer pricing

documentation and contractual agreements. We have also performed procedures among others to evaluate key
accounting estimates for management bias that may represent a risk of material misstatement due to fraud, in particular
relating to important judgment areas and significant accounting estimates as disclosed in Note 3 of the financial
statements. These risks did however not require significant auditor's attention in addition to the following fraud risk
identified during our audit.

In our audit approach we considered the board of management’s incentive to originate fictitious loans to related parties, or
to overvalue loans to related parties in order to increase the reported balance of loans to related parties. We describe our
audit procedures responsive to this fraud risk in the description of our audit approach for the key audit matter ‘Existence
and valuation of the loans issued to related companies’.

We considered available information and made enquiries of relevant executives and the company’s board of
management.

The consideration of the potential risk of management override of controls or other inappropriate influence over the
financial reporting process, enquiries and assessment of other available information did not lead to specific indications for
fraud or suspected fraud potentially materially impacting the view of the financial statements.

Our audit response related to risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations

We assessed factors related to the risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected
to have a material effect on the financial statements from our general industry experience, through discussions with the
board of management, reading minutes, and performing substantive tests of details of classes of transactions, account
balances or disclosures.

We have been informed by the board of management that there was no correspondence with regulatory authorities, and
remained alert to any indication of (suspected) non-compliance throughout the audit, amongst which compliance with
current sanctions legislation. Finally we obtained written representations that all known instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations have been disclosed to us.

Our audit response related to going concern

As disclosed in section Going concern in Note 2 to the financial statements, the board of management made a specific
assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern and to continue its operations for at least the next 12
months.

We discussed and evaluated the specific assessment with the board of management exercising professional judgment
and maintaining professional skepticism. We considered whether the board of management’s going concern assessment,
based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our audit of the financial statements or otherwise, contains
all events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, including
considerations relating to the financial position of Toyota Group. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
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Based on our procedures performed, we did not identify serious doubts on the company’s ability to continue as a going

concern for the next 12 months. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements. We have communicated the key audit matter to the board of management. The key audit matter is
not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed.

In comparison with previous year, our key audit matter did not change.

Existence and valuation of loans issued to related companies

Risk The main activity of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV. is to operate as a financing company
of the Toyota Group, raising funds from third party lenders through bond issuance, loans and other
facilities and subsequently on-lending such funds to Toyota Group companies (related companies).
The Company is exposed to the risk that a Toyota Group company defaults on its obligations, as
disclosed in Note 31.4 Credit risk to the financial
statements.

Loans to related companies represent the most significant proportion of the Company’s current and
non-current assets. In addition, expected credit losses may have a material impact on the financial
statements and, when such losses materialize, the available cash flows to fulfill obligations towards
third party lenders. Estimating expected credit losses is a key area of judgment for the board of
management. The use of different assumptions could produce significantly different estimates of
expected credit losses and we considered the

potential fraud risks related to the existence and valuation of loans to related companies.

As such we identified the existence and valuation of loans issued to related companies as key audit
matter.

We refer to Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies and Note 14 Loans to related
companies of the financial statements where the board of management has disclosed the policies
and procedures for loans issued to related companies and where the board of management has
disclosed that the entire portfolio of financial assets are classified as stage 1 given the
creditworthiness and payment history of the related companies.
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Existence and valuation of loans issued to related companies

Our audit We evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies applied related to recognition of loans to
approach related companies and expected credit losses in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the board of
management. We obtained an understanding of internal controls related to the valuation and the
estimation of expected credit losses on loans to related companies. We have applied mainly
substantive audit procedures on the balances of loans issued to related companies. These
procedures included, amongst others:
Inspecting loan contracts to related companies and obtaining loan confirmations to verify the
existence of the loans to related companies
Obtaining an understanding of the expected credit loss process and model
Evaluated key judgments and estimates made by the board of management to calculate the
expected credit loss, including an evaluation of the impact assessment for the COVID-19
pandemic on expected credit losses by the board of management
Verifying the calculation of the expected credit loss and evaluating the appropriateness of the
relevant disclosures made
Reading the 2022 statutory financial statements of Toyota Motor Corporation (TMC),
evaluating the financial position of TMC and its external credit rating as well as evaluating the
appropriateness of the relevant disclosures made
Inspecting the fair valuation of notes issued by the Company and TMC to identify potential
increased credit risk

Key Based on our procedures performed, we did not identify evidence of material misstatement in the
observations  existence and valuation of loans issued to related companies. The disclosures on loans issued to
related companies meet the requirements of EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other information included in the annual report

The annual report contains other information in addition to the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:
Is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements
Contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code for the management report and the
other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our audit of the
financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains material misstatements. By
performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch
Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is substantially less than the scope of those performed in our audit
of the financial statements.

The board of management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the management report in

accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Engagement

We were engaged by the board of management as auditor of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV. on 26 June 2017,
as of the audit for the year ended 31 March 2018 and have operated as statutory auditor ever since that financial year.

Description of responsibilities regarding the financial statements
Responsibilities of the board of management for the financial statements

The board of management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore,

the board of management is responsible for such internal control as the board determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the board of management is responsible for assessing the company
's ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks mentioned, the board of
management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting unless the board of
management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The board of management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objective is to plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not detect all
material errors and fraud during our audit.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified
misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit, in
accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements. The ‘Information in
support of our opinion’ section above includes an informative summary of our responsibilities and the work performed as
the basis for our opinion.
Our audit further included among others:
Performing audit procedures responsive to the risks identified, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the board of management
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures
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Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation

Communication
We communicate with the board of management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We provide the board of management with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of management, we determine the key audit matters: those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless

law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, not
communicating the matter is in the public interest.

Amsterdam, 28 July 2022

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

signed by Paul Sira
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